WSS S A A A S S A A A A S A S

N\h\h\h\>

Coeur d'Alene
CITY COUNCIL MEETING

April 5, 2016

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL:
Steve Widmyer, Mayor
Council Members Edinger, English, Evans, Gookin, McEvers, Miller

v sy

FATNTNT NN TN NN TN NN TN TN NN TN TN NN TN NN NN Y

<~ SN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN NN N



PRESENTATIONS



fi {/\’\ FINANCE DEPARTMENT
S 710 E. Mullan Avenue

City of ’
Coeur d’Alene Coeur d’ Alene, Idaho 83814
IDAHO (208)769-2225 - FAX (208)769-2284
www.cdaid.org

Finance Department Staff Report

Date: April 5, 2016
From Troy Tymesen, Finance Director
Subject: Annual Audited Financial Statements

Decision Point: To accept the Annual Audited Financial Statements for year
ended September 30, 2015 and direct staff to file a copy with the legislative
services office in Boise, Idaho.

History: Each year the City is required to prepare basic financial statements,
a schedule of expenditures of federal awards and conduct an audit of these
statements. The City has completed the statements and the annual audit and
is presenting them at this time to the Mayor and City Council, as per Idaho
Code section 67-450B.

Financial analysis: This year the City engaged the audit firm of Anderson
Bros., CPAs, P.A. to conduct the audit. The City agreed to pay Anderson Bros
$27,500 for the 2014 -2015 annual audit, which was less than budgeted.

Decision Point: To accept the Annual Audited Financial Statements for year
ended September 30, 2015 and direct staff to file a copy with the legislative
services office in Boise, Idaho.



Citvy of Coeur d’£

Financial Statement Audit
September 30, 2015

Basics of a Financial Statement Audit

¢ A financial statement audit is required by Idaho
State statutes

* Primary purpose:
¢ Assures that the financial statements, in all material respects,
fairly state the financial position as of a certain date.

e Statements conform with GAAP (generally accepted accounting
principles) and Governmental GAAP

¢ Adequate presentation
¢ Adequate disclosures

3/31/2016



”"//City of Coeur d’Alene

Audit for the year ended September 30, 2015

* Independent Auditor’s Report on Financial Statements -
Unmodified Opinion (pages 1-3)

* Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of
Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with
Government Auditing Standards (pages 100-101)

* Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance with
Requirements That Could Have a Direct and Material
effect on Each Major Program and on Internal Control
Over Compliance in Accordance with OMB Circular A-
133 - Unmodified Opinion (pages 102-103)

“‘”/City of Coeur d’Alene

Audit for the year ended September 30, 2015

* Financial Highlights:
e GASB 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions implemented:
- Resulted in a net pension asset for the FRF plan of $3,981,015 at
9.30.15

- Resulted in a net pension liability for the Base plan of $6,575,089
at 9.30.15

3/31/2016



3/31/2016

/City of Coeur d’Alene

Audit for the year ended September 30, 2015
¢ Financial Highlights:

« City issued $6 million in general obligation bonds for public
safety expenditures

« City issued $8,670,367 in sewer revenue bonds to pay for

upgrades and construction of tertiary membrane filtration

and nitrification improvements to the wastewater treatment
facilities

,/

/City of Coeur d’Alene

Audit for the year ended September 30, 2015
* Financial Highlights:

¢ At 9.30.15 the General Fund unassigned fund balance was
$7,663,870 or 21.34% of the amended 2015 budget of
General Fund expenditures

e Overall revenues for the General Fund before transfers
were $1.3 million over the final amended budget of $31.8
million and $1.8 million over the original budget of $31.3
million

e Overall expenditures for the General Fund before transfers

were $1.99 million under the final amended budget and
$728K over the original budget




3/31/2016

Clty of Coeur d’Alene

Audit for the year ended September 30, 2015

¢ Financial Highlights:
. Proprletary Funds increased the City’s net position by $2,086,641

This amount includes non-operating revenues and expenses which contributed
a net $2.1 million to the increase

« Capital contributions contributed $1.174 million to the increase
- Revenues from charges for services increased by $2.4 million mainly due to an
increase in water revenues of $1 million and an increase in wastewater
revenue of $1.1 million
o All Proprietary funds had net operating income, except street
lighting and public parking, which has losses of $111,427 and
$222,063 (mainly due to depreciation), respectively

» The Water Fund’s operating income was relatively low at $45,433

General Fund Revenues and Expenditures
5 Year Comparison

34,000,000 -
33,000,000 -
32,000,000 -

31,000,000 -
30,000,000 - M Revenues
® Expenses
29,000,000 -
28,000,000 -
27,000,000 -

26,000,000 T T T T T
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015




0

8,000,000

7,000,000 -

6,000,000 -

5,000,000 -

4,000,000 -

3,000,000 -

2,000,000 -

1,000,000

General Fund
Unassigned - Fund Balance Trends

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

City of Coeur d'Alene

e Why is a Fund Balance Important?

* Revenue stream is not consistent month to month (property taxes
received in July and January)

 Protect the City from unnecessary borrowing

e Provide prudent resources to meet unexpected emergencies
(recessions) and protect against catastrophic events

e Meet uncertainties of State and Federal funding

e Help ensure a credit rating that would qualify the City for lower
interest costs (in case of needed borrowing)

e Help ensure future financial stability

3/31/2016



3/31/2016

The Government Finance Officers Association
recommends at a minimum, that governments,

maintain an unassigned fund balance in their
general fund of no less than 5 to 15 percent
of reqular general fund operating revenues,
or no less than one to two months of

reqular general fund operating

expenditures.

General Fund - Unassigned
Fund Balance as a % of Revenues

25%

20%

15% = :

10%
5% ==
0% : : : :

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015




3/31/2016

General Fund

# of Days Expenditures in Unassigned
Fund Balance

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10 =
0 ‘ \ T \

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

Water Fund - Operating Re\;énues and

Expenses
5 Year Comparison
6,000,000 -
5,000,000 -
4,000,000 -
]
3,000,000 - Revenues
W Expenses
2,000,000 -
1,000,000 -
0 . ; [ :
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015




3/31/2016

Wastewater Fund - Operating Revenues and
Expenses
5 Year Comparison

9,000,000 -
8,000,000 -
7,000,000 -
6,000,000 -
5,000,000 - M Revenues
4,000,000 - M Expenses
3,000,000 -
2,000,000 -
1,000,000 -

0

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

QUESTIONS?




CONSENT CALENDAR



MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO,
HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM

March 15, 2016

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at
the Coeur d’Alene City Library Community Room March 15, 2016 at 6:00 p.m., there being
present upon roll call the following members:

Steve Widmyer, Mayor
Loren Ron Edinger Members of Council Present
Dan Gookin
Kiki Miller
Woody McEvers

Amy Evans
Dan English

N N N N N N

CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Widmyer called the meeting to order.
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Councilmember McEvers led the pledge of allegiance.

ANNUAL REPORT FROM THE ARTS COMMISSION: Arts Commission Chair Jennifer
Drake presented a report outlining the accomplishments of the commission. She noted that over
the past year six new members were added and that they currently have one vacancy. She
encouraged community members to apply for that volunteer spot. Highlights included a current
value of the City’s art collection at $1,573,193 located throughout the community and the
continuation of the annual Art-currents program downtown. In 2015, they installed three new
pieces, and reinstalled the “Kate” art piece in Riverstone. The utility boxes in McEuen have
been wrapped with historic photos of McEuen and are topped with way-finders. In 2016, they
anticipate a Gateway to Riverstone project, murals at Sherman Avenue Park and the confluence
of the Prairie and Centennial Trails. She thanked the City for its support of the arts, as well as
the community.

Councilmember Gookin expressed a desire to broaden the scope of the term “art” in the code.
He asked if the mural project was going to be a graffiti wall. Ms. Drake noted that a discussion
regarding graffiti walls is how the mural discussion began; however, the commission decided to
start with painted murals and may progress into a graffiti wall in the future. Councilmember
Gookin asked if there were any art opportunities within the Mullan Road project. Ms. Drake
stated that there have been locations held out for art pieces. Councilmember McEvers asked if
the commission was looking for specific backgrounds in their volunteers. Ms. Drake clarified
that they have a wide variety of people serving on the commission, with varying backgrounds.
They are looking for someone with an interest in the arts. Mayor Widmyer thanked the Arts
Commission members for their service.



CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion by Gookin, second by Evans, to approve the consent
calendar, with the amendment to the Public Works Committee Minutes to reflect
Councilmember McEvers’ absence.

1. Approval of Council Minutes for March 1, 2016 and March 7, 2016 Council Meetings.

2. Approval of Bills as Submitted.

3. Approval of Public Works Committee and General Service Minutes for March 7, 2016
Meetings.

4. Setting of a public hearing for April 5, 2016 to hear public testimony regarding the
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Plan Year 2016 Annual Action Plan.

5. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for March 21, 2016
at 12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m. respectively.

6. Resolution No. 16-011 - A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE,
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED
CONTRACTS AND OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE
INCLUDING APPROVING AN AGREEMENT WITH BMX ASSOCIATION FOR A
THREE-YEAR TERM FOR USE OF THE CHERRY HILL BMX TRACK;
APPROVING CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH EDNETICS,
INC. FOR THE IP CAMERA SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM PROJECT; APPROVING
CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 TO THE CONTRACT WITH SPECIALTY PUMP
SERVICE, INC. FOR THE 4TH STREET WELL REHABILITATION PROJECT; AND
DECLARATION OF SURPLUS USED VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT FROM
VARIOUS DEPARTMENTS.

ROLL CALL: Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye.
Motion Carried.

MAYOR AND COUNCIL COMMENTS:
Councilmember Evans welcomed the students and Boy Scouts in attendance.

Councilmember Gookin appreciated the first responders for the outstanding work they did in the
Pastor Remington shooting.

Council Bill No. 16-1003
ORDINANCE 3531

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION
4.25.090 ENTITLED “OVERNIGHT CAMPING PROHIBITED” TO PROVIDE
DEFINITIONS, CLARIFICATION OF PROHIBITED CONDUCT, AND EXCEPTIONS TO
THE CAMPING PROHIBITION; PROVIDING FOR THE REPEAL OF CONFLICTING
ORDINANCES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR THE
PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

STAFF REPORT: Police Chief Lee White requested the Council approve the proposed
amendments to the camping code to make clarifications to the definition section that are

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 Page 2



enforceable and fair. One of the current exceptions to the code allows camping on public land if
all the shelters are full. The Legal Department reviewed court challenges and created this code
to meet all the City’s needs without criminalizing homelessness. The code still allows overnight
camping at a residence in the case of overnight visitors who have permission of the homeowner.
Boat camping at the city docks slips would be allowed upon payment of the moorage fee.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Gookin asked if it is illegal to allow someone to plug his or her
RV into a residence. City Attorney Mike Gridley noted that it could be a safety issue under the
building code. Councilmember McEvers asked for clarification regarding the on-street parking
code. Chief White explained that the parking code allows parking for less than 24 hours, so
RV’s are being moved every day one space at a time to circumvent the code. The code
amendments would allow the ability to prevent that type of behavior.

MOTION: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Miller, to pass the first reading of Council Bill
No. 16-1003.

ROLL CALL: Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye.
Motion Carried.

MOTION: Motion by Edinger, seconded by McEvers, to suspend the rules and to adopt
Council Bill 16-1003 by its having had one reading by title only.

ROLL CALL: Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye.
Motion Carried.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-012

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY,
IDAHO, AUTHORIZING A ONE-YEAR CONTRACT WITH EMERGE CDA, INC., TO
PROVIDE MONTHLY COMMUNITY ART CLASSES.

STAFF REPORT: Community Planning Director Hilary Anderson noted that the proposed
contract with Emerge CDA, Inc. would be a one-year term, to provide the service of monthly
community art classes and two community art shows. Emerge CDA, Inc. is a non-profit art
group that promotes arts in the community for youth and adults. The teachers are credentialed
and have been background-checked. The group has a governing board, which would include one
Arts Commission member. This program would differ from the previous summer arts program
in that the classes will be offered free of charge, with materials and supplies provided, and it will
be able to serve substantially more citizens over the course of a year, rather than just the summer
months. It is expected that this program will take minimal staff time to manage versus the prior
summer program. Ms. Anderson noted that this would be a pilot program and would cultivate an
interest in the arts for youth and adults. She reviewed the Arts Policy and Arts Commission
duties, and benefits of art to demonstrate that the promotion of arts is important to the
community.

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 3 Page



MOTION: Motion by English, seconded by Evans to approve Resolution No. 16-012;
approving an Agreement with Emerge CDA, Inc. for monthly community art classes.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Edinger noted that this proposal was brought to the General
Services Committee and was passed unanimously. Councilmember McEvers asked if the
program was free under the old system. Ms. Anderson clarified that there was a fee under the
prior program; however, this program will be free to the public and the cost to the Arts
Commission is $1,200 a month. She explained that the prior Summer Arts Program Director
retired and the previous model was not sustainable. Councilmember English said he was
impressed with the potential of the program and its wide number of options. Councilmember
Gookin expressed concern that Emerge has not been in business long. Ms. Anderson noted that
there are not any other organizations around that can take on this type of program.
Councilmember Gookin asked for information regarding the Arts Maintenance Fund. Ms.
Anderson said that currently the fund has a healthy balance of $120,000. The Mayor felt it will
be a very popular program and it will be important for rules to be in place to allow plenty of
people access to the classes. Councilmember Miller expressed concern that it would be open to
the region rather than just Coeur d’Alene citizens. She noted that she believes it will give people
exposure to various forms of art and will encourage them to sign up for private lessons
thereafter. Councilmember Evans thanked the Arts Commission and staff who conducted a lot
of research with the Legal Department and believes this expands opportunities to the community.
It was important to the Arts Commission to bring something new to the community and she
appreciates their hard work.

ROLL CALL: Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye.
Motion Carried.

2" MOTION: Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers to direct staff to review and
recommend changes to the ordinance regarding the Arts Commission liaison language.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Gookin explained that the existing the ordinance is specific to
the liaison being in the Recreation Department and refers to art as sculptures. Parks and
Recreation Director Bill Greenwood clarified that retired Parks and Recreation Director Steve
Anthony was the Arts Commission liaison; however, that duty was transferred to the Planning
Department when the Parks and Recreation Departments were combined. Ms. Drake said that
there has been some discussion by the Arts Commission regarding the updating of the ordinance
and broadening the scope of art to be more than physical public art.

Motion Carried.
3" MOTION: Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers to direct the Arts Commission to

review the ordinance and recommend changes that broaden the scope of art to be more than
physical pieces. Motion Carried.

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 Page 4



PRESENTATION AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE 2015 HOUSING NEEDS
ASSESSMENT

Mollie Fitzpatrick, Associate with BBC Consulting, presented the 2015 Housing Needs Assessment
and Barriers Analysis conducted for the City of Coeur d’Alene. She noted that BBC Consulting
conducted the first housing needs assessment for the City in 2006, and the following updates. She
explained that a balanced housing market is important to meet the needs of existing and future
workforce. The City of Coeur d’Alene does not have any geographic clusters of minorities. Since
the 2000 study, the City has no substantial changes to race/ethic distribution. Additionally, the city
has had only a modest change in housing stock, which remains largely single-family units with
some growth in multi-family; however, home ownership is still difficult for average income
workers. Affordability is still a problem for renters. At the time of the study, there was a shortage
of rental units by 1,745 priced affordable to those citizens earning $20,000 or less a year, which is
an increase from the 2009 study. The gap would have been much larger if some of the federally
funded programs had not been in place. She noted that it appears that housing prices that have
bounced back to pre-recession levels but wages have not. Based on the survey they conducted the
housing type most identified as most needed was homes priced under $200,000. She noted that
according to the Census data approximately 15% of the community reported a disability, of which
33% stated that their housing did not meet their accessibility needs. Ms. Fitzpatrick noted that there
were only a few barriers to housing choice; however, within the state of Idaho compliance with
accessibility requirements of the Fair Housing Act are low, including Coeur d’Alene. Goals for the
City should be to continue to identify and work with the urban renewal authority to convert
underutilized parcels into mixed income/mixed use housing; adopt a policy that when public land
becomes available that reuse for mixed income housing is a top consideration; as budget allows
offer reductions or waiver of fees associated with residential development. Additionally, the City
should consider density bonus beyond downtown, set housing targets, and continue to educate the
community regarding the Fair Housing Code. She also recommends the City continue to fund
accessibility improvements and expand the transit system.

MOTION: Motion by Gookin, seconded by Edinger to accept the 2015 Housing Needs
Assessment.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember McEvers asked for additional information regarding income
differences and the connection to age, etc. Ms. Fitzpatrick clarified that a person is more likely
to be a buyer in the middle age range and rent while younger, and then again rent when a senior.
Councilmember English noted that Habitat for Humanity pays the sewer cap fees for their
projects and it is expensive but government agencies cannot waive such fees. Ms. Fitzpatrick
explained that she has seen a spectrum of fee reduction/waiver options with other cities. Some
cities waive certain fees such as review fees; however, she has not seen communities waive a cap
fee. Mayor Widmyer noted that one way to make housing more affordable is the creation of
better paying jobs. Councilmember McEvers asked for more information regarding the survey
that was conducted. Ms. Fitzpatrick noted that the survey was sent to stakeholders and focus
groups. It was available on the City’s webpage, so it was an “opt in” survey. It is not

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 5 Page



statistically significant, and she noted that the survey respondents were more likely to be middle
aged and tended to be families, and a little toward higher income.

Motion carried.
RESOLUTION NO. 16-013

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY,
IDAHO, AMENDING THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE PERSONNEL RULES BY
AMENDING RULE XI, ATTENDANCE AND LEAVES, SECTION 11, RETIREMENT
MEDICAL BENEFIT.

STAFF REPORT: Human Resource Director Melissa Tosi explained that the personnel rule
related to the medical retirement benefit had not been amended in 10 years. Several
clarifications to the program were needed and she is recommending increasing the savings
amount, clarification regarding the need for the consultation, and removal of the option for the
employee to stay on the City’s health insurance plan. She reviewed the HRA/VEBA options and
noted that this rule will apply specifically for needed consultation services. This will provide
departments another option for succession planning. She noted that one amendment was
requested by the Fire Union to mirror their Civil Service Rules to be able to fill the position after
60 days vacancy rather than 90 days, which she felt was reasonable.

MOTION: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Gookin to approve Resolution No. 16-013;
Personnel Rule Amendment to Rule XI, Section 11 entitled Retirement Medical Benefit.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Gookin clarified that the intent of this rule is for those positions
the City would need consultation with, not all city employees.

ROLL CALL: Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye.
Motion Carried.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-014

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO,
ACCEPTING THE BID OF CONTRACTORS NORTHWEST, INC., FOR FLOOD WORKS
REPAIR.

STAFF REPORT: Engineering Services Director Gordon Dobler noted that three bids were
submitted for this project and that Contractors Northwest, Inc. was the lowest responsive bid and
came in approximately $58,000 under the engineer’s estimate. He noted that the Flood Works
Repair Project is a budgeted project and is being funded from the Drainage Utility, the
Wastewater Utility, and NIC. The funding agreement with NIC was amended to include this
project in March 2015.

MOTION: Motion by McEvers, seconded by English to approve Resolution No. 16-014;
approving an Agreement with Contractors Northwest for award of the Flood Works Repair Project.

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 Page 6



ROLL CALL: English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye.
Motion carried.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-015

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY,
IDAHO, ACCEPTING THE BID OF CAMERON-REILLY, LLC, FOR THE MULLAN
RD IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT.

STAFF REPORT: Mr. Dobler noted that four bids were received for this project and that
Cameron Reilly, LLC. was the lowest responsive bid and came in approximately $20,000 under
the engineer’s estimate. He noted that the Mullan Road Improvements Project is a budgeted
project, with the cost shared between the City of Coeur d’Alene and Ignite CDA. The financing
agreement with Ignite CDA was approved on December 16, 2015.

MOTION: Motion by Gookin, seconded by Evans to approve Resolution No. 16-015;
approving an Agreement with Cameron Reilly, LLC. for the award of the Mullan Avenue
Project.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember McEvers asked if there were any alternates included in this bid.
Mr. Dobler clarified that there were no alternates for this project. Councilmember Gookin asked
if the Council would be presented with the details of the project. Mr. Dobler confirmed that he
would leave a hard copy of the plans at City Hall for the Council to review at their leisure. He
noted that the contract would be a 120-day project, with the Notice to Proceed issued before the
end of this month.

ROLL CALL: Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye.
Motion carried.

COUNCIL BILL NO. 16-1004
ORDINANCE 3532

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, VACATING A PORTION OF
KATHLEEN AVENUE RIGHT- OF-WAY, GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS A PARCEL
OF LAND LYING SOUTH OF THE KATHLEEN AVENUE CENTERLINE AND
NORTHEASTERLY OF THE PRAIRIE TRAIL RIGHT-OF-WAY LOCATED IN THE
NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 50 NORTH, RANGE 4 WEST,
AND THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 51 NORTH,
RANGE 4 WEST, BOISE MERIDIAN, CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI
COUNTY, IDAHO; REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES AND PARTS OF ORDINANCES
IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND
PROVIDING FOR THE PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY OF THIS ORDINANCE
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE HEREOF.

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 7 Page



MOTION: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger, to pass the first reading of Council Bill
No. 16-1004.

ROLL CALL: Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye.
Motion carried.

MOTION: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger, to suspend the rules and to adopt
Council Bill 16-1004 by its having had one reading by title only.

ROLL CALL: Miller Aye; McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye.
Motion carried.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-016

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO,
AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH LONGWELL + TRAPP ARCHITECTS FOR THE
CITY HALL ADA ENHANCEMENT/REMODEL PROJECT.

STAFF REPORT: Finance Director Troy Tymesen noted that he will be asking for Council
approval of the Agreement with Longwell + Trapp Architects for a fixed fee of $119,750.00, as
well as outlining the project funding options. He noted that this project has been underway
since 2003 and it is not in the current Financial Plan. The architect could get the construction
drawings done within 90 days, which would include details such as computer drop locations, etc.
The project is estimated to be a $1.65 million dollar project. The project management plan will
come back to Council, as staff is seeking out options to utilize existing staff, since the cost to hire
a project manager is estimated to be $30,000 to $40,000.

The City will be liquidating the Fruitland Avenue land and moving forward with the property
trade with St. Vincent de Paul to sell the Harrison Avenue building. The Blackwell Island
appraisal was received this evening, and a summary of that appraisal will be distributed
tomorrow. The appraisal estimated the land value at approximately $250,000. Mr. Tymesen
noted that the lease funding option has been cleared by the Supreme Court and is a viable option.
He noted that the Council will be presented with the audit at its next meeting, and will hear that
the City has a healthy fund balance, which grew by $1.2 million dollars this past year.

Currently, 21% of General Fund expenses are in the form of cash, with $7.6 million dollars in
unassigned fund balance. A source of repayment or a portion of repayment for this project
could be in the form of existing cash from the General Fund.

MOTION: Motion by Gookin, seconded by English to approve Resolution No. 16-016;
approving an Agreement with Longwell + Trapp Architects for the City Hall ADA
Enhancement/Remodel Project and Funding Update.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember McEvers asked if the City could borrow from itself. Mr.
Tymesen clarified that it is an option to borrow from the General Fund. Councilmember
McEvers asked for clarification regarding the fixed fee for architectural services. Mr. Tymesen
clarified that the fee will include the architect as a partner throughout the entire project and will

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 Page 8



be paid out throughout the term, not all at once. Councilmember Edinger expressed concern
with spending $1.6 Million for the project. Mr. Tymesen explained the features within the plan
and explained that it will include additional security enhancements. Councilmember Edinger felt
that the community would not be supportive of a remodel to City Hall. Mr. Tymesen noted that
with this remodel the City would no longer have to lease space for the criminal division, which
would help fund the project. Councilmember Miller stated that she had an injury that required
her to be in a wheelchair and it was an extreme challenge to move throughout City Hall.
Additionally, she felt that the efficiencies in managing this building should be in the forefront of
the design and she would like it to include the hiring of a project manager outside of staff, as she
does not believe they would have time to manage the project and money would be saved in the
end. Councilmember Gookin reiterated that he opposes the bank lease option. He would like to
use the sale of surplus property and fund balance as funding sources. Councilmember English
felt there were many members of the public that come to City Hall each year and believes that
City Hall has been undersized and inefficient for some time. He noted that it is not fun to spend
money on facilities but it is needed and that the time to deal with ADA issues is prior to getting a
complaint.

Mayor Widmyer reiterated the importance of increased efficiencies within the project. He noted
that the sale of the house on Fruitland Lane would be close to the cost of the architect.
Additionally, having a City Hall that is not compliant is not good, which this project would cure.
Councilmember McEvers said that he believes that the City has used the building efficiently for
40 years and agrees there should be efficiencies throughout; however, one of the biggest issues is
security. While he likes the open environment, it has to go away to provide security. He agreed
that bringing in the Criminal Division into City Hall would be a huge efficiency.
Councilmember Edinger noted that the $1.6 million estimate will likely be more and that the
main goal of the Council was to enhance public safety, not remodel City Hall. He noted that the
public should be notified of this project and give input. Mr. Tymesen noted that this is one time
expenditure to improve a fixed asset. Mayor Widmyer recommended that once design drawings
were complete staff could bring options back to the Council. He noted that this is a basic
remodel and when the final dollar amount and funding is established, information can be better
distributed to the community. Councilmember McEvers reiterated that the security of the
employees and the public included in this project is an important feature. He noted that the
Council has not raised taxes in years and reiterated that ADA lawsuits can be more expensive
than the remodel project.

ROLL CALL: McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger No; Miller Aye.
Motion carried.

A-1-16 (QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING); 2109 W. PRAIRIE AVENUE FOR PROPOSED
ANNEXATION FROM COUNTY AGRICULTURE TO CITY R-8 (RESIDENTIAL AT 8
UNITS/ACRE) ZONING DISTRICT BY VISTA MEADOWS LLC.

STAFF REPORT: Planner Sean Holm explained that the applicant, Vista Meadows, LLC, has
requested annexation of approximately 14.66 acres located between W. Timberlake Loop and
West Alps Street, South of Prairie Avenue, and North of Coeur d’Alene Place PUD, with zoning
at Residential 8 units/acre. He reviewed the property location, area zoning, and area land uses.

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 9 Page



He noted that the findings required for the annexation include: that this proposal is or is not in
conformance with the Comprehensive Plan policies; that the public facilities and utilities are or
are not available and adequate for the proposed use; that the physical characteristics of the site
make or do not make it suitable for the request at this time; and that the proposal would or would
not adversely affect the surrounding neighborhood with regard to traffic, neighborhood
character, and/or existing land uses. He noted several applicable Comprehensive Plan policies
and characteristics of the site. He noted that there are no proposed conditions as the Annexation
Agreement will cover any concerns.

Mayor Widmyer called for public comments and the Clerk conducted the oath for each of those
testifying.

APPLICANT: Sandy Young stated that she is acting as the owner’s representative for this
request. She noted that the proposed development is a subdivision and PUD, which was
approved by the Planning Commission. She explained that the subdivision would consist of 43
lots, 33 duplexes and 10 four-plexes. Open space will be treed and useable open space. She
explained that the water service will be from Hayden Lake Irrigation district and there is capacity
to allow for the city wastewater service.

Public Comment was closed.

DISCUSSION: Councilmember Gookin asked for clarification of open space and public access.
Ms. Young explained that it is open space for use of the development, but it is not a gated
development and can be used by the public and maintained by the homeowner’s association.

MOTION: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Edinger to approve the A-1-16: 2109 W. Prairie
Avenue for proposed annexation from County Agriculture to City R-8 (Residential at 8 units/acre)
zoning district by Vista Meadows LLC., to make the necessary Findings and Order and to direct
staff to negotiate an annexation agreement.

ROLL CALL: Gookin Aye; Evans Aye; English Aye; Edinger Aye; Miller Aye; McEvers Aye.
Motion carried.

ADJOURN: Motion by McEvers, seconded by Evans that there being no other business this
meeting be adjourned. Motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

ATTEST: Steve Widmyer, Mayor

Renata McLeod, CMC, City Clerk

Council Minutes March 15, 2016 Page 10



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
MINUTES
March 21, 2016
4:00 p.m., Library Community Room

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT STAFF PRESENT

Councilmember Woody McEvers Dennis Grant, Eng. Project Manager
Councilmember Dan Gookin Jim Remitz, Capital Program Manager
Councilmember Dan English Tim Martin, Street Superintendent

Gordon Dobler, Engineering Svcs Dir.
Kenny Gabriel, Fire Chief

Randy Adams, Deputy City Attorney

Amy Ferguson, Executive Asst.

Sid Fredrickson, WW Superintendent

Jim Hammond, City Administrator

Item 1 Approval of Low Bidder for the 2016 Overlay Project
Consent Calendar

Dennis Grant, Engineering Project Manager, presented a request for council approval of Interstate
Asphalt & Concrete, Co. as the low bidder for the 2016 Overlay Project.

Mr. Grant stated in his staff report that the City received four responsive bids. The streets that will be
overlaid this year are located in the Northshire Subdivision west of Atlas Road and north of Nez Perce
Road.

Mr. Grant noted that the Engineer’s estimate for this project was around $640,000 and the bid of
$556,556.56 came in roughly $100,000 under the $660,000 overlay budget for the year.

Councilmember Gookin asked if the streets would be overlaid, and not chip sealed. Mr. Grant confirmed
that they would be overlaid and ground down an inch and a half from the curb. Councilmember Gookin
asked what happens to the money that is saved. Mr. Grant said they would be using that money for the
chip seal project, plus some carryover from the previous year.

Councilmember English asked whether, in these situations where there is money left over, if they have a
list of optional items that they could do, such as overlaying additional streets. Mr. Grant said that they
have added streets in the past and they did talk about possibly doing some more chip seal this year, but
this is the first year for the chip seal project and they are also spending some money prepping the roads.

MOTION: Motion by Gookin, seconded by Dan English, to recommend Council approval

Resolution No. 16-017 authorizing an agreement with Interstate Asphalt & Concrete, Co. for the
2016 Overlay Project in the amount of $556,556.56. Motion carried.

Public Works Committee 03/21/16



Item 2 Sole Source Procurement of AWTF Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Membrane
Filtration Equipment
Consent Calendar

James Remitz, Capital Program Manager, presented a request for council to declare that GE Water &
Process Technologies, Inc. is the sole vendor of the AWTF Tertiary Treatment, Phase 2 tertiary
membrane filtration equipment pursuant to Idaho Code 67-2808. The council was also requested to
authorize publishing a notice in the newspaper stating the City’s intent to sole-source procure and
authorizing Wastewater staff to negotiate and the Mayor to execute a purchase agreement for the
membrane filtration equipment.

Mr. Remitz stated in his staff report that the Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department is currently in the
design phase for the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements to the City’s Advanced Wastewater
Treatment Facility (AWTF). These improvements are necessary in order for the City’s AWTF to comply
with the requirements of the EPA National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that
was issued on December 1, 2014, that allows for the discharge of treated wastewater into the Spokane
River. The design of the improvements follows the recommendations and conclusions of various
planning efforts. Construction of Phase 5C.1 — Initial Tertiary Membrane Filtration and Nitrification
Improvements, that incorporated the GE Water & Process Technologies membrane filtration system, was
completed in March of 2015. After one year of operation this full-scale pilot has resulted in very low
phosphorus levels in the treatment wastewater from the Tertiary Membrane Filtration (TMF) facility.
Using the tertiary membrane filtration system will enable the City to meet the stringent effluent
phosphorus limits of the NPDES permit.

The Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Project has obtained a $20,000,000 loan through the IDEQ Clean Water
State Revolving Loan Fund for the design and construction of the improvements. This funding source
will fund the proposed membrane filtration equipment to be procured from GE Water & Process
Technologies. It is estimated that the value of the sole source contract with GE Water & Process
Technologies will be approximately $5,500,000.

Mr. Remitz said that the Wastewater Treatment Plant currently has six cassettes of the membrane in place
and it has been very effective so far. There are 48 membrane modules per cassette. The membranes are
routinely cleaned. Each tank has six cassettes. Phase 2 includes the construction of additional primary
and secondary clarifiers, chemical system expansion, and completion of the tertiary membrane filtration
system for flows up to 5 MGD. They are requesting a sole source purchase of the membrane filtration
equipment because of its compatibility with the existing membranes.

Councilmember McEvers asked how long the membranes last. Mr. Fredrickson said they are warranted
for seven or eight years and typically they are hearing from the industry that they are getting 10 to 12
years out of them if they are treated gently. The replacement costs will have to be figured into the
replacement budget in the future. Mr. Fredrickson said that there is a continuous cleaning process going
on with the membranes to knock the solids down. The poor size of the membranes is 200 times smaller
than the human hair and they have to continually scour the membranes with air to keep the solids from
building up. They also do two types of chemical cleaning — one is a maintenance cleaning twice a week,
and then a recovery clean where the entire membrane is taken off line, the tank is filled with chemicals,
and the membranes are soaked overnight and then put back on line. Because of this weekly cleaning, you
have to have a redundant membrane so that you can always have one off line for cleaning. Mr. Remitz
commented that the life span of the membrane is directly related to the cleaning efforts.

Councilmember Gookin asked about the anticipated funding source for the replacements in the future.
Mr. Fredrickson said that that would have to come out of the rate money and they will have to factor for

Public Works Committee 03/21/16 2



it. They have an equipment replacement account set up for all of the plant equipment which is not being
funded as much as it needs to be.

Mr. Fredrickson confirmed that other companies make membranes, but they are different and not
compatible. In 2011, they went to competitive bid and GE was awarded the bid, which is why they ended
up sole sourcing the first batch of members.

Councilmember Gookin asked what would happen if GE went out of business? Mr. Fredrickson
confirmed that they would still be able to obtain the membranes because they are made by other
companies.

Mr. Fredrickson confirmed that they would be working with their engineers and the city’s engineers to get
the best price that they can.

MOTION: Motion by English, seconded by Gookin, to recommend council approve Resolution No.
16-017, declaring (1) that GE Water & Process Technologies, Inc. is the sole vendor of the AWTF
Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 tertiary membrane filtration equipment, (2) authorizing the
publication of a notice of intent to sole-source procure the tertiary membrane filtration equipment
and (3) authorize Wastewater staff to negotiate, and the Mayor to execute, a purchase agreement
with GE Water & Process Technologies, Inc. for the tertiary membrane filtration equipment.
Motion carried.

Hem-3——Autheorization-te-RPurchase-\Vehicle for Drainage Uttty Lead- Werker REMOVED

Item 4 Blackwell Island Fireboat Moorage
Consent Calendar

Kenny Gabriel, Fire Chief, presented a request on behalf of Deputy Chief Jim Washko that Council
accept the MOU Agreement with Kootenai County for the moorage of the City’s Fire Boat in the
enclosed boat house in the Blackwell Island Marina.

Deputy Chief Washko stated in his staff report that for the last 10 years or more Kootenai County Fire &
Rescue (KCFR) has been housing their fireboat in an enclosed boathouse on Blackwell Island that is
owned by Hagadone Hospitality Co. and leased by Kootenai County for Kootenai County Parks &
Waterways (KCPW) and KCFR. KCFR has decided to pull their boat off of the north end of the lake and
concentrate their efforts more on the Spokane River. With them moving from the boathouse, this creates
an open slip. The total cost of the lease will be split 50/50 between CDAFD and KCPW. The lease this
year is pro-rated to reflect putting the boat in the slip on May 1* through October 31*. Having the boat
in the water in a secure location will give the CDAFD the ability to protect its equipment and respond in a
timely manner at all hours to incidents on the water in Lake Coeur d’Alene.

Chief Gabriel said that the legal department has reviewed the MOU. The city’s responsibility would be to
pay one-half of the $6,000 a year moorage which Kootenai County pays to the Hagadone Corporation.

He confirmed that the boat will be moored year around in the water and will be in a secure building.
When their FD apparatus needs to go there, they can park off the beaten path without having to go
through neighborhoods and there is security there. Kootenai County is very willing to help with
modifications inside the boat house to facility getting the new fire boat to fit.

Public Works Committee 03/21/16 3



Councilmember Gookin said that the council had originally asked them to find out what it would be like
to put the boat down on Third Street. Chief Gabriel said that he talked to Bill Green and they could give
them the last two spots on the dock, but they would extend out 20 feet. They could also build a boathouse
at the end of the dock, but it would be intrusive, and they would have to go through the Department of
Lands to get a permit.

Councilmember Gookin said that the lease concerns him because it is actually KC Waterways leasing the
boat house from the Hagadone Corporation. Chief Gabriel confirmed that they are leasing the boathouse
on a year-to-year basis and their hope is that the Hagadone Corporation will always allow them to have
the boathouse there. Councilmember Gookin asked if, at some point, it would be cheaper to build a
facility. Chief Gabriel said that if that property is ever annexed, they may have the ability to do that.

Councilmember McEvers asked about Kootenai County’s fire boat and if it was pulled off the lake. Chief
Gabriel confirmed that Kootenai County’s boat is quite old and all of their response area has moved down
the river so it makes sense for them to get a boat that fits their needs a little more on the river. The Fire
Department will partner with them in regard to calls and they will be trained on the boat as well.

Councilmember McEvers asked if the FD would be doing patrols on the boat, or if it was for calls only.
Chief Gabriel said they would do patrols for certain events only, like the 4" of July. They are also going
to train police officers on how to use the boat in case they need it for something.

Councilmember English said that he remembers from his days at the county that getting covered
moorages can be tough. He noted that it sounds like a good deal for the city, even on a year-by-year
basis.

MOTION: Motion by Gookin, seconded by English, to recommend Council approve Resolution
No. 16-017 authorizing a MOU Agreement with Kootenai County for the moorage of the CDAFD
Fire Boat in the enclosed boat house in the Blackwell Island Marina. Motion carried.

The meeting adjourned at 4:24 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Amy C. Ferguson
Public Works Committee Liaison

Public Works Committee 03/21/16 4



CEMETERY LDT TRANSFER/SALE/REPURCHASE PROCEDURE AND ROUTING SLIP

Request receivéd by /M M ﬂ/ C(Ml &W { CZS WL{_Z\W(S g/&_ﬁ/ Ié

‘ Department Name / Employee Name / Date
Request made by: .NW@ %f C“Ch 7 Phbn
S5 Nowh Carden Paza O fpk loT_bost Falls D &5+
Address v '

Th t is for: / /R h f Lot(s) | ' s
TN 752::?;“”;°._ot?sffm Tene ~Focden ., Leerued A Botricin A

Niche(s): . 6@ VA
Lot(s): 5/1 Q& ’ ’ ) « Block: 2/7 Section: Ig /7 _

Lot(s) are located in /%”’Forest Cemetery / / Forest Cemetery Annex (Rlverv1ew)
Copy of / / Deed or / / Certificate of Sale must be attached.
Person making request is /:x{’0wner / [/ Executor* / / Other*

*If “executor" or “"other", affidaviats of authorization must be attached.

o0
Title transfer fee ($ /9&9 <« ) attached#*, _
**Request will not be processed without receipt of fee.  Cashier Receipt No.: ‘1?;‘?'773[*;

ACCOUNYING DEPARTMENT Shall complete the following: L

Attach copy of original contract,

Accountant SlgnatuE9

CEMETERY SUPERVISOR shall complete the following:

1. The above-referenced Lot(s) is/are certified to be vacant: 4>§7 Yes / / No
2. The owner of record of the Lot(s) in the Cemtery Book of Deeds is listed as:

Hor/ oy dnd Fene Jordan 60

3. The purchase prlce of the Lpt( en sold to the owner of record was § /17l> per lot.
DR |

Bupervisor's Init. Date

LEGAL/RECORDS shall complete the following:

1. Quit Claim Deed(s) received: / Yes / / No.

Person making request is authorized to execute the claim: . ILD
Attorney Init. Dat

I certify that all requirements for the transfer/sale/repurchase of cemetery lot(s) have been. met and
recammend that that transaction be completed.

City Clerk's Signature Date

COUNCIL ACTION _
Council approved transfer/sale/repurchase of above-referenced Lot(s) in reqular session on:

Mo./ Day /¥r.

CEMETERY SUPERVISOR shall complete the following:

Change of ownership noted/recorged in {h- Book of Deeds: / / Yes / / No
Cemetery copy filed / /; origin and- ;upport doc ents returned to Clty Clerk / /
€ etery Superv%gdi s Slgnature Date

Distribution: Original to City Clerk

Yellow copy Finance Dept..
Pink copy to Cemetery Dept.

¥ thok i sate




=== BEER, WINE, AND/OR LIQUOR APPLICATION Expires March 1annually

City of Coeur d’ Alene [Office Use Only)Amt Pd "y
Municipal Services g:ieNo :
710 Mullan Avenue : _ Date to ity Councul: ’7/5/ e
Coeur d' Alene, Idaho 83814 Reg Ho.
208.769.2229 Fax 769.2237 ;'vmme No.

Date that you would like to begin alcohol service
Check the ONE box that applies:

Beer only ( canned and bottled) not consumed on premise $ 50.00 per year
Beer and Wine (canned and bottled) not consumed on premise $250.00 per year
.| Beer only (canned and bottled only) consumed on premise o $100.00 per year
_ -| Beer and Wine ( canned and bottled only) consumed on premise $300.00 per year
: . | Beer only ( draft, canned, and bottled) consumed on premise $200.00 per year
- ‘
N Beer and Wine (Draft, canned, and bottled) consumed on premise $400.00 per year
: Beer, Wine, and Liquor (number issued limited by State of Id) $762.50 per year
>< “ | Transfer of ownership of a City license with current year paid | $
-/~ | Beer—to go only $6.25 Beer- Can, Bottled only COP .50 . 20
. +.'| Beer- Draft, can, bottled ﬁ Q‘TZ_S\ Wine additiona $25 / 5& “
-...- | Consumed on premise
| Transfer from

Lormerty Pripclc < zmai AM Gty fulb

Bunessteme | Gl Did (orpornion b4 The Blehd 77 ’“m‘ﬁl’ .
slisl;rnzsiddress | é/ 6 A/ L/A'% 97‘,

cvseeme | Coowrd Blene, T L)k

I?’Ejls?:asf Adtzsl're;'-‘,s' SCU/M(E (5

City, State. Zip (boye

'B'UsinessContact' Business Telephone : a@gb@lz 777 Fax: o“go&éé({/

Email address: ﬁW/?LM/M / éﬂ/&//ﬁy M?LWM/ 50%4

e
H

License
Applicant

1 If Corporation,
partnershlp, LLC etc
,Llst all .
~’members/off|cers

it Basso |
| /0 e

i




RESOLUTION NO. 16-017

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY,
IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER
ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVAL OF SS-3-15,
COOPER’S CORNER SUBDIVISION: FINAL PLAT, SUBDIVISION AGREEMENT, AND
SECURITY; APPROVAL OF AN AGREEMENT AND BID AWARD TO INTERSTATE
ASPHALT & CONCRETE, CO. FOR THE 2016 OVERLAY PROJECT; DECLARE THE
SOLE SOURCE PROCUREMENT OF AWTF TREATMENT PHASE 2 MEMBRANE
FILTRATION EQUIPMENT, DIRECT THE PUBLICATION OF NOTICE OF A SOLE
SOURCE PROCUREMENT AT LEAST 14 CALENDAR DAYS PRIOR TO THE AWARD
OF THE CONTRACT, AND AUTHORIZE STAFF TO NEGOTIATE A PURCHASE
AGREEMENT WITH GE WATER & PROCESS TECHNOLOGIES, INC.; APPROVAL OF A
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH KOOTENAI COUNTY FOR USE OF THE
BLACKWELL ISLAND MARINA FOR MOORAGE OF THE FIRE BOAT; AND
APPROVAL OF A SIX-MONTH LEASE EXTENSION WITH COMMERCIAL PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT FOR 816 SHERMAN AVENUE FOR THE LEGAL - CRIMINAL OFFICE.

WHEREAS, it has been recommended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter into the
contract(s), agreement(s) or other actions listed below pursuant to the terms and conditions set
forth in the contract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) documents attached hereto as Exhibits
“A through E” and by reference made a part hereof as summarized as follows:

A) Approval of SS-3-15, Cooper’s Corner Subdivision: Final Plat, Subdivision
Agreement, and Security;

B) Approval of an Agreement and bid award to Interstate Asphalt & Concrete, Co.
for the 2016 Overlay Project;

C) Declare the Sole Source Procurement of AWTF Treatment Phase 2 Membrane
Filtration Equipment, direct the publication of notice of a sole source procurement
at least 14 calendar days prior to the award of the contract, and authorize staff to
negotiate a purchase agreement with GE Water & Process Technologies, Inc.;

D) Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with Kootenai County for use of
the Blackwell Island Marina for moorage of the Fire Boat;

E) Approval of a six-month lease extension with Commercial Property management
for 816 Sherman Avenue for the Legal — Criminal Office;

AND;

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the
citizens thereof to enter into such agreements or other actions; NOW, THEREFORE,

Resolution No. 16-017 l1|Page



BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene that the
City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set forth in substantially the
form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through E" and incorporated herein by reference with the
provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are hereby authorized to modify
said agreements or other actions so long as the substantive provisions of the agreements or other
actions remain intact.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Clerk be and they are hereby
authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City.

DATED this 5™ day of April, 2016.

Steve Widmyer, Mayor
ATTEST

Renata McLeod, City Clerk

Motion by , Seconded by , to adopt the foregoing
resolution.
ROLL CALL:
COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER ENGLISH Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER Voted

was absent. Motion

Resolution No. 16-017 2|Page



CITY COUNCIL

STAFF REPORT
DATE: April 5, 2016
FROM: Christopher H. Bates, Engineering Project Manager
SUBJECT: Cooper’s Corner Subdivision: Final Plat, Subdivision Improvement Agreement & Security

Approval

DECISION POINT
Staff is requesting the following:

1. City Council approval of the final plat document, a three (3) lot residential development.
2. City Council approval of the furnished subdivision improvement agreement and security.

HISTORY
a. Applicant: Chad Oakland
- Seeland, LLC
2022 N. Government Way
Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814
b. Location: SE corner of 12" Street and Homestead Avenue.
C. Previous Action:

1. Preliminary plat approval, December 2015.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The developer is furnishing security in the amount of $22,500.00 which covers the outstanding cost of the
uninstalled infrastructure installations that are required for this development.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

The developer has completed the necessary subdivision agreement and is bonding for the outstanding
infrastructure items (sewer & water lateral services, paved parking space) in order to receive final plat approval. The
installation of the agreement and security enables the developer to receive final plat approval and sell platted lots,
however, occupancies will not be allowed until all infrastructure installation has been completed, and, the
improvements accepted by the City. The developer has stated that all infrastructure installations will be complete by
July 1, 2016.

DECISION POINT RECOMMENDATION

1. Approve the subdivision improvement agreement and security.
2. Approve the final plat document.

coopcorfnipltsubagrcc




E 0c70-925-002 INOHI - ;
4 R | o e,
Perptipr .
m & o o= 5 PP QUBLIG MIT T GEN. Lot ; m.mau!ﬁiﬂduunma%ﬁ
; o g ey VB aEE Ry TR
F m W lig 093} 'y ket .96 . TENETS FILAVITD HIINTD
- ONTYTINTONTALID IHVE - - - . - q&.., . [ X2
20651 201 ONF0r g - I_“A e - —_ —
Py Sive FARIG VONRIAS - %
05=0b FWos . (N | . \ i
s ‘A8 LT = T 7 i
S50 A8 GO - . i ~ y !
s
08 =4 FWOS : ! N _
008 5 2 o s
f———————-__—__1
. _ _ i \*/
proter oy . ex0078 s i
58 S A RN !
32 : s
. m s
i 1 : 7
< P
-
4 . L\\ < < ..%$ L !
H |1 el | } R
& .
Ul ’
; - - - m:%ﬁwmtl‘l.wﬁm’-lll!lll%li;‘.li
g8 87
3 o8 \
; &7 !
i @ [
| & [ —
i B i
8 008 3 8 7
NI DNILSIE "o X X . i srmg.m%mp z?u....,.m\zi%z x _M | ‘
mz:zw‘::uwn: R : . n«.&mrzﬁ. z ! ﬂ
i o . , i |
SNITUIINTD oot o e . ;
DNLOTINGOVRRY. e £ o _ s z |
INTLOTALTLONS 83 s __ i ™
ATV t mn y; —
435 O QN0 SNIHION "LNIDd GELYINOTYD W o £30018 . o3 Pl
INOLS FOUSTNI.+; GNNOH B % - y 9 4 i a
YD ONHLIM MYES HE GNNOS. @ > s H N
848 ST, GV VD DLSY I MOTIZA HUlM MYGS.26 aNriod O : E s = b4
Soid N -1 aNNDS O - 2 : ]
2017 Sk GIHUYI YO LSV MOTIZA HLI UVES SZX 202 235" M g s . o VAL . { N
Elgs I $ZXLIS ® m T OVIIAT NSO | o onoost S vz o s m #3007 m
eEGEY] g Y S =Sl ._
i frvonoast m\ ek » |
‘GO AN0D FOTEIOT ONLSEE ) e 2 ¢ !
IYNZLOON AUO M "N LY T THALO Yo ) ! ™~ w! £ ] .M i
659 3 & . 8
ANIOD MVALOON 2 39vd 'S1¥7d 0 IH00T. . i covn: Zuz0.088 § 2 !
s QUL VASTA AUNOPIH0 LVid (&) ST 1. xag a8 €
OHVDH 0L FOVS L OTHS _8ls L5 N e I
NOLLGQY LS. V1 (o) WM 8 soom W:m“go::u mwl.u 4
CHYG A 629 IOV SAINP 2008 ¢ : . vw g ¢ H ] 1 . i
oTTd 2 s o 3 . \
‘OHYaI A ‘108 39V HO0G LY 8 1 kkkkkar\_ s L2 \
aF anv. I e, B [ 950t M09 10 GEN ~mwnvk.$= H |
% ‘v .y ! :
SINSNNMDO0G FONFHT-3E § ﬁ o O u |
‘ $ B d 1 Yo H
(- T : ; - P i
ol BHH_ byt fgml | st ; N b L i
a0 ANY HON ALYBA0US - —a .
o SRS TSR L > T KOS L SV aIELLY ON SVM FEStiL «” RS oot *QESN.W.‘%M»VN 58S .- ~d DT e I2 003
erm o moest.san) ~ o |
FION %2 - - - - S h . - - ) | _
LG i INNIAV GVELSIWOH ~ .
. ; S
2 LY 46590 40 JTONY A, i ; - ;
0 ASIN INOZ QHYE H i i \ ] i ~
XIANAIS SIHL HO P H M | ! . 1 J\P |
i H - i ~ i
ONIGVIa JO SISva | | T A | < |
H { | ;
| 1oay i & ovps v ; ™
i 13307 i H Jad¥. [N P ooy
i i 1 M “ i oot zwoom8 | H awww;,.../
| | 8 , N
N ! f [ e\ H H >y
~ . |
OHYa! ‘AINNOS IYNILOOY SN V.0 HNFOO JO ALID ‘NYIQRIIWN 38109 ~ . ,
LSIM & JONVH ‘HLIYON 05 JIHSNMOL 24 NOLLO3S ~ o
HO HILHVNO LSYIHLHON FHL 5O YILHVNO LSYIHLNOS FHL Nt ONIAT ~ .
NJOE 78 ‘9L QNV St P64 SLOTJO LY TN V¥ . 0001922152 240
‘N INGWNMLSNI NOLLIAQY 18+ SANVIWOD FLISNMOL LSIMHLYON JO € %00 T N B
. YO ONHUM HveRe 2t ONN0T )
e e HINHOO S.434000 00 SIS LA




c

CET09L0-602 SNOH
54868 CHYGH INITV.G N300
# TS AUMUBHIVHIS N S06E

PTG,

205 307 0N GO
SL0TBL0E - g
FUN o8
s A8 GtV
sz “AG GINOIHD
'NO ST NOISSINNOD AN
AN ANVION
e ! ALY LSnL HONGQVHS T ALIIS 342 40 TS HONS SY
WS L 1L IR OL anv 2007 gz, “asnur
E TALITS ¥, QL
F9oLTIOL HONTAVHS T'ALLIG RIS ATIVNOSHTd -
Y FHOIE T 02 VA IHL M FOAVE T SHING
'$S NILOON 40 AINNOO ‘OHYQ! SO UVLS.
JLVIISILEED OF781d AYV.LION
200 ‘YZHALOO 40 AV WS THL QLT ‘LSML TIEVOCATY HONGAVHS T ALLSE
ENd s PIVIE:)

INTTV 02 30 AL FHL AT QIS 3T QL I 1 Icd SHL Ot HILYM OLSINOG

AL FHL 0L SIIVIdSHL AWVINVS
AVHL NAONY YTHLENS 1 39

$SF1H0 3HON ‘G SOV
CNINMDETY J0 10T STIL FHL O LIFH 00074 LS 4T J6ON 2t LOT GIVS SO INITHINON THE ONOTY JONGHL

2
0L 1339 00095 #.80.9Z .05 'AVM 4O LHORI LSTM QIVS ONOTY IHNTHL

AFTIVENIOTBLY IS TLSNMOL LSIMHLEON QS F0 AVM 30 LHOIE LSTM THL ONY A¥M SO LHOW

HLNOS QIVS 40 NOILOFSHIINI IHL OF LT3 G0DYE 365,52 59§ AVM JO LHORS HINOS QIVS ONOTY FONIHL

NNV ONVAYM SO
LNORS LSV IV O NOILOTSUALNG T4k OL LI5S OO0 280,92 0N ‘AYM SO LHOR! LSV GIVS SNOTY SONIHL.
‘ONIRNISEE J0 INIGd SHUL 3HL OM3E LNIOd QI¥S ‘133418
25 20 AVM SO LHORS ISVE ML NO LVTJ IUSNMOL 2.
LSSMMLION 3HL O L334 640264 2.9 25 21800
HLHON FHL HOIHM WO OHYGH ‘A A STd TRV
HON #5v oNnZg YILYYND HIINTO THL LY INONTANOD

AOH Y OHYCH A "LSTM » FONVE HIHON
s NOILLOTS NS ONIAT ‘OHYTH
92 FOVel 'SV JO D H00G NI OF 15
LSTMWHLEON J0 £ ¥00TE 95 ONY $4 4 '6X SLOT 40 LY 163Y ¥ INITE ‘HENS0D SHIHIO0O S¥ AMONY
T 0L L7 SIHL NiHL1A GTOVHENT ONYT FHL LAIO G SUH ONY SNMO 11 LYH1 AJULNTD ABSHSH S300 ‘2002
K s FALLZS3HI 2L e

NOLLVOIGIa ANV 3LVYOIHILETFD S,HINMO

“ON INSWVHLSNE
4008

‘2ovd

SMOTIOS SY GIBHOSIT ATV MUYV
ALD

uvg

u\&.\.\ I\._\goﬁm a
TOELOF ¥ LEEL-06 3000 3 v

M VIS SIHL LV SHL NO NMOHS SV ‘13538 77M SY3NUOD

| TVAVHLGNY TIHL 40 aris

£V 2HL IVHL AFUYTO AGRITH OC "OHYAS 30 FLVLS 1

ILYOIHALLAFD S.HOAINENS

oz 40AYQ S TUYT
13N NG SAVH SATNANS

LY THLIO L
LY IHL LVHE AFLLYTO AGTEIH |

FLYOIHIYETO SHOAIALNS ALNMOD

005 = LIS

dVYIWALINIOIA

LSIM ¥ FONVY ‘HINON 05 dIHSNMOL 24 NOLLOSS

OHVOI 'ALNNOD IYNILOOX ‘INTTV.G 8N30 4O ALID. NVIGIMIN 3SI0F

“LSIMN ¥ FONVY HLHON 05 dIHSNMOL ‘gL NOLLOFS

H0 Y2LHYNO LSYIHLYON IHL 30 YILYYND LSVIHLNOS FHL Ni ONIAT

2 LOMISHO HLTV2H TTHVHNYS,
e 20 AVT’ SIHL-OUVA
| TIVHS STILF z
B0 MM SN HO SNIGUN,

SOTVIULEOY DLEL05. N
‘QISOH22F 36 AYW SNOLLOIILSTS SULIOV. vt

"SI NOINVL 5 30M

GRMOT

VLM ONDINIIO ON “TYAOM SOV YIEHL JO IFTL FHL LVHL CINOILIYO S) HIANT “SNOUIRLSTY
SHLANY NV SN i NOIS0 3HL 50 TAOUGY Jd 10 SHL ONY INTIV HIZ00
HOM 5 TFSNFON GIHATVINO ¥ AD HHAAT ¥ NO C3SYR
UGV 06 TUL A8 ALY

TWAOHIY LOIHLSIG HLTYIH

UTUNSYIHL ALNAOD IVNZLOON

Tz J0AYD SHL @Y
T "HONOUML GIv NFFA 3N NOILLYOIGIT

HOS ING STV FHLLYRL ASUNTO AGRIH

FLYOIHILHID SHFHNSYILL ALNNOCD

HHTIO ALNNOD IVNZLOON ‘NONNYYE 1
MUTIDALNLIT

£33

N YITNON INSHOULSNG SV

§30Vd SUVIddOT  NoeEN T T v e 0 Ava.
SHLOMVaL & = 40 N QHOOTY HO< 2002 HIEALOO FO AVD
WTIHL 1SnM1. TALL32 0, LV id SIHL

HIAHODIH ALNNOD IYNILOOM

AL »ER 1=y

Te T T doava SHL azIva
AL AS GRACKIY ONY SUH LY SIHL

TAOHJIY TTONNOD ALID

NOLLIGQY LSt SANVINOOD ZLSNMOL LSIMHLHON H0 € XO0TE ‘2 ONV §i ‘vt ‘€L SLOTHO LV IdIN ¥

HINHOO S.43d4000




COOPER’S CORNER

Performance Bond Estimate

Description Unit Unit Cost Total
lf\ 3 NEEUNG
Sanitary Sewer Lateral 2ea $1,750 Jea §$3,500
Domestic Water Lateral 2ea $3,500 /ea $7,000
Paved Driveway (parking) 1ls $ 4,500 $ 4,500
Total Cost $ 15,000
150% Bond Increase $ 7,500

TOTAL BOND AMOUNT $ 22,500

3909 N. Schreiber Way, Suite 4 - Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83815 - tel: 208.676.0230 - www.lakecityengineering.com




AGREEMENT TO PERFORM SUBDIVISION WORK
Cooper’'s Corner Subdivision

THIS AGREEMENT made this day of April, 2016 between Seeland, LLC, with Chad Oakland,
Managing Member, whose address is 2022 N. Government Way, Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814, hereinafter referred to
as the "Developer,” and the city of Coeur d'Alene, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of the state of
Idaho, whose address is City Hall, 710 E. Mullan Avenue, Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814, hereinafter referred to as the
"City",

WHEREAS, the City has approved, subject to completion of the required improvements, the Cooper's
Corner subdivision, a three (3) lot residential development in Coeur d'Alene, situated in the Northeast %4 of
Section 12, Township 50 North, Range 4 West, B.M., Kootenai County, Idaho; NOW, THEREFORE,

IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS:

The Developer agrees to complete the following public improvements: sanitary sewer lateral installations
for Lots 1 & 2, domestic water service lateral installations for Lots 1 & 3, installation of the required two (2) paved
parking spaces for the existing single family dwelling unit on Lot 2, as required under Title 16 of the Coeur d'Alene
Municipal Code, on or before the 1* day of July, 2016. Said improvements are more particularly described on the
submitted estimate of probable construction costs dated March 23, 2016 attached as Exhibit “A”, compiled by
Drew Dittman, PE, #11138 of Lake City Engineering, Inc., whose address is 3909 N. Schreiber Way, Suite # 4,
Coeur d’Alene, ID 83815.

The Developer, prior to recording the plat, shall deliver to the City, security in the amount Twenty Two
Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($22,500.00) which is the cost required for securing the obligation of
the Developer to complete the subdivision improvements referred to herein. Should the Developer noted herein fail
to complete the improvements within the time herein provided, the City may utilize the funds to complete or have
the improvements completed. In the event the City completes the improvements as a result of the Developer’s
default, the Developer shall be responsible for any costs that exceed the installed security for the public
improvements noted herein.

The Parties further agree that the City has utilized substantial staff time to prepare the agreement that will benefit
the Developer's. The Parties further agree the City should be reimbursed a reasonable fee for its costs to prepare
such agreement. The Parties further agree that such fee should be in the amount of Twenty Five and No/100
Dollars ($25.00).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands and seals the day and year first above written.

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE SEELAND, LLC
Steve Widmyer, Mayor Chad Oakland, Managing Member
ATTEST:

Renata McLeod, City Clerk

[Agreement re: Resolution No. 16- |

Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "A"



COOPER’S CORNER

Performance Bond Estimate

Description Unit Unit Cost Total _
FAKFE CITY ENGINEE Illn'\'-L'-
Sanitary Sewer Lateral 2ea $1,750 /ea $3,500
Domestic Water Lateral 2ea $ 3,500 /ea $ 7,000
Paved Driveway (parking) 1ls $ 4,500 $ 4,500
Total Cost $ 15,000
150% Bond Increase $ 7,500

TOTAL BOND AMOUNT $ 22,500

3908 N. Schreiber Way, Suite 4 - Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83815 - tel: 208.676.0230 - www.lakecityengineering.com
Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "A"



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
STAFF REPORT

DATE: March 21, 2016
FROM: Dennis J. Grant, Engineering Project Manager
SUBJECT: Approval of Low Bidder for the 2016 Overlay Project

DECISION POINT

Staff is requesting the City Council to approve Interstate Asphalt & Concrete, Co.
as the low bidder for the 2016 Overlay Project.

HISTORY

The City of Coeur d’Alene received four responsive bids:

Interstate Asphalt & Concrete, Co. $ 556,556.56
Poe Asphalt Paving, Inc. $572,071.30
Coeur d’Alene Paving, Inc. $ 634,726.45
Knife River Corporation — Northwest $ 663,076.00
Engineer’s Estimate $ 640,000.00

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The overlay program is a budgeted item. The budgeted amount is $660,000.00,
so there are sufficient funds.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS

The City of Coeur d' Alene received four responsive bids for this years overlay.
The largest differences in the bids were in Mobilization and Traffic Control costs.
The streets that will be overlaid this year are located in the Northshire
Subdivision West of Atlas Road and North of Nez Perce Road.

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends a motion to approve Interstate Asphalt & Concrete, Co. as the

low bidder and authorize the mayor to execute the contract for the 2016 overlay
program.



CONTRACT
For
2016 OVERLAY PROJECT

THIS CONTRACT, made and entered into this 5th day of April, 2016, between the CITY
OF COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation duly organized and
existing under and by virtue of the laws of the state of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”,
and Interstate Concrete & Asphalt, Co., a corporation duly organized and existing under and by
virtue of the laws of the state of Idaho, with its principal place of business at 8849 W. Wyoming
Avenue, Rathdrum, Idaho 83858, hereinafter referred to as “CONTRACTOR?”,

WITNESSETH:

THAT, WHEREAS, the said CONTRACTOR has been awarded the contract for 2016
Overlay Project according to plans and specifications on file in the office of the City Clerk of said
CITY, which plans and specifications are incorporated herein by reference.

IT IS AGREED that for and in consideration of the covenants and agreements to be made and
performed by the City of Coeur d’Alene, as hereinafter set forth, the CONTRACTOR shall
complete improvements as set forth in the said plans and specifications described above, in said
CITY, furnishing all labor and materials therefore according to said plans and specifications and
under the penalties expressed in the performance bond bearing even date herewith, and which bond
with said plans and specifications are hereby declared and accepted as parts of this contract. All
material shall be of the high standard required by the said plans and specifications and approved by
the City Engineer, and all labor performed shall be of first-class workmanship. The placement of
asphalt overlay material shall not begin prior to June 13, 2016.

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish and install barriers and warning lights to prevent
accidents. The CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold the CITY harmless from all
claims arising from the CONTRACTOR's actions or omissions in performance of this contract, and
to that end shall maintain liability insurance naming the CITY as one of the insureds in the amount
of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) for property damage or bodily or personal injury, death or loss
as a result of any one occurrence or accident regardless of the number of persons injured or the
number of claimants, it being the intention that the minimum limits shall be those provided for under
Idaho Code 6-924. A certificate of insurance providing at least thirty (30) days written notice to the
CITY prior to cancellation of the policy shall be filed in the office of the City Clerk.

The CONTRACTOR agrees to maintain Workman’s Compensation coverage on all
employees, including employees of subcontractors, during the term of this contract as required by
Idaho Code Sections 72-101 through 72-806. Should the CONTRACTOR fail to maintain such
insurance during the entire term hereof, the CONTRACTOR shall indemnify the CITY against any
loss resulting to the CITY from such failure, either by way of compensation or additional premium
liability. The CONTRACTOR shall furnish to the CITY, prior to commencement of the work,
such evidence as the CITY may require guaranteeing contributions which will come due under the

Resolution No. 16-017 Page 1of6 EXHIBIT “B”



Employment Security Law including, at the option of the CITY, a surety bond in an amount
sufficient to make such payments.

The CONTRACTOR shall furnish the CITY certificates of the insurance coverage’s
required herein, which certificates must be approved by the City Attorney.

The CONTRACTOR agrees to receive and accept as full compensation for furnishing all
materials, and doing all the work contemplated and embraced in the contract, an amount equal to the
sum of the total for the items of work. The total for each item of work shall be calculated by
determining the actual quantity of each item of work and multiplying that actual quantity by the unit
price bid by the CONTRACTOR for that item of work. The total amount of the contract shall not
exceed Five Hundred Fifty-six Thousand Five Hundred Fifty six and 56/100 Dollars
($556,556.56).

Monthly progress payments must be submitted by the 10" of the month for work done in the
previous calendar month. Partial payment shall be made by the end of each calendar month ona duly
certified estimate of the work completed in the previous calendar month less five percent (5%).
Final payment shall be made thirty (30) days after completion of all work and acceptance by the City
Council, provided that the CONTRACTOR has obtained from the Idaho State Tax Commission and
submitted to the CITY arelease of liability for taxes (Form 10-248-79). Payment shall be made by
the City Finance Director.

The number of calendar days allowed for completion of the Contract work shall be 30 calendar days.
The contract time shall commence no later than 10 days after the date of the Notice to Proceed
issued by the CITY.

The CITY and the CONTRACTOR recognize that time is of the essence and failure of the
CONTRACTOR to complete the work within the time allowed shall result in damages being
sustained by the CITY. Such damages are and will continue to be impractical and extremely
difficult to determine. Therefore, in the event the CONTRACTOR shall fail to complete the work
within the above time limits, the CONTRACTOR shall pay to the CITY or have withheld from
monies due, liquidated damages at the rate of One Thousand Five Hundred and No/100 Dollars
($1,500) per calendar day, which sums shall not be construed as a penalty.

IT IS AGREED that the CONTRACTOR must employ ninety-five percent (95%) bona fide
Idaho residents as employees on any job under this contract except where under this contract fifty
(50) or less persons are employed by the CONTRACTOR, in which case the CONTRACTOR may
employ ten percent (10%) nonresidents; provided, however, in all cases the CONTRACTOR, must
give preference to the employment of bona fide residents in the performance of said work.

The CONTRACTOR further agrees: In consideration of securing the business of
construction the works to be constructed under this contract, recognizing the business in which he is
engaged is of a transitory character and that in the pursuit thereof, his property used therein may be
without the state of Idaho when taxes, excises or license fees to which he is liable become payable,
agrees:

Resolution No. 16-017 Page 2of6 EXHIBIT “B”



1. To pay promptly when due all taxes (other than on real property), excises and license
fees due to the State of Idaho, its subdivisions, and municipal and quasi-municipal
corporations therein, accrued or accruing during the term of this contract, whether or
not the same shall be payable at the end of such term.

2. That if the said taxes, excises and license fees are not payable at the end of said term
but liability for said payment thereof exists, even though the same constitutes liens
upon his property, to secure the same to the satisfaction of the respective officers
charged with the collection thereof.

3. That in the event of his default in the payment or securing of such taxes, excises and
license fees, to consent that the department, officer, board or taxing unit entering into
this contract may withhold from any payment due him hereunder the estimated
amount of such accrued and accruing taxes, excises and license fees for the benefit of
all taxing units to which said CONTRACTOR is liable.

The CONTRACTOR further agrees, in consideration of securing this contract, to comply
will all the requirements of Attachment 1, which by this reference is incorporated herein.

IT ISFURTHER AGREED that for additions or deductions to the plans and specifications,
the unit prices as set forth in the written proposal of the CONTRACTOR are hereby made part of
this contract.

For the faithful performance of this contract in accordance with the plans and specifications
and payment for all labor and materials, the CONTRACTOR shall execute good and sufficient
performance bond and payment bond in a form acceptable to the City Attorney each in the amount of
one hundred percent (100%) of the total amount of the bid as hereinbefore stated, said bonds to be
executed by a surety company authorized to do business in the state of Idaho.

The term “CONTRACT DOCUMENTS” means and includes the following:

A) Advertisement For Bids

B) Information For Bidders
C) Bid Proposal
D) Bid Bond

E) Bidding Forms as Required

F) Contract

G) Labor and Materials Payment Bond
H) Performance Bond

1) Notice of Award

J) Notice to Proceed

K) Change Order

L) General Conditions

M)  Technical Specifications

Resolution No. 16-017 Page 30of6 EXHIBIT “B”



N) Special Provisions
0) Plans
P) Addenda

No. , dated :

THIS CONTRACT, with all of its forms, specifications and stipulations, shall be binding
upon the parties hereto, their successors and assigns.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Mayor and City Clerk of the City of Coeur d'Alene have
executed this contract on behalf of said CITY, and the CONTRACTOR has caused the same to be
signed by its President, the day and year first above written.

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, CONTRACTOR:
KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO INTERSTATE CONCRETE & ASPHALT, CO.
By:

Steve Widmyer, Mayor
Its: Jared Wise, Construction Manager

ATTEST:

Renata McLeod, City Clerk

Resolution No. 16-017 Page 4 of 6 EXHIBIT “B”



STATE OF IDAHO )
) SS.
County of Kootenai )

On this 5" day of April, 2016, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Steve
Widmyer and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the
City of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said City
of Coeur d'Alene executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day
and year in this certificate first above written.

Notary Public for
Residing at
My Commission expires:

STATE OF IDAHO )
) SS.
County of Kootenai )

On this day of April, 2016, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Jared
Wise, known to me to be the Construction Manager, of Interstate Asphalt & Concrete, Co., and
the person who executed the foregoing instrument on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged
to me that such corporation executed the same.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day
and year in this certificate first above written.

Notary Public for
Residing at
My Commission expires:

Resolution No. 16-017 Page 50of6 EXHIBIT “B”



Attachment 1

This Attachment is to be inserted in every contract subject to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and associated
Regulations.

During the performance of this contract, the contractor/consultant, for itself, its assignees and successors in interest
(hereinafter referred to as the “contractor”) agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Regulations

The contractor shall comply with the Regulations relative to non-discrimination in federally assisted programs
of United States Department of Transportation (USDOT), Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, part 21, as
they may be amended from time to time, (hereinafter referred to as the Regulations), which are herein
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract.

Non-discrimination

The contractor, with regard to the work performed by it during the contract, shall not discriminate on the
grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin in the selection and retention of sub-contractors, including
procurement of materials and leases of equipment. The contractor shall not participate either directly or
indirectly in the discrimination prohibited by Section 21.5 of the Regulations, including employment practices
when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations.

Solicitations for Sub-contracts, Including Procurement of Materials and Equipment

In all solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiations made by the contractor for work to be
performed under a sub-contract, including procurement of materials or leases of equipment, each potential sub-
contractor or supplier shall be notified by the contractor of the contractor’s obligations under this contract and
the Regulations relative to non-discrimination on the grounds of race, color, sex, or national origin.
Information and Reports

The contractor shall provide all information and reports required by the Regulations or directives issued
pursuant thereto, and shall permit access to its books, records, accounts, other sources of information, and its
facilities as may be determined by the contracting agency or the appropriate federal agency to be pertinent to
ascertain compliance with such Regulations, orders and instructions. Where any information required of a
contractor is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or refuses to furnish this information, the
contractor shall so certify to ITD or the USDOT as appropriate, and shall set forth what efforts it has made to
obtain the information.

Sanctions for Non-compliance

In the event of the contractor’s non-compliance with the non-discrimination provisions of this contract, the
contracting agency shall impose such contract sanctions as it or the USDOT may determine to be appropriate,
including, but not limited to:

e Withholding of payments to the contractor under the contract until the contractor complies, and/or;
e  Cancellation, termination, or suspension of the contract, in whole or in part.

Incorporation of Provisions

The contractor shall include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (5) in every sub-contract, including
procurement of materials and leases of equipment, unless exempt by the Regulations, or directives issued
pursuant thereto. The contractor shall take such action with respect to any sub-contractor or procurement as the
contracting agency or USDOT may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for non-
compliance.

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a
sub-contractor or supplier as a result of such direction, the contractor may request ITD enter into such litigation
to protect the interests of the state and, in addition, the contractor may request the USDOT enter into such
litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Resolution No. 16-017 Page 60f6 EXHIBIT “B”



PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
STAFF REPORT

DATE: March 21, 2016
FROM: James Remitz, Capital Program Manager

SUBJECT: Sole Source Procurement of AWTF Tertiary Treatment Phase 2
Membrane Filtration Equipment

DECISION POINT:

The City Council is requested to declare that GE Water & Process
Technologies, Inc., is the sole vendor of the AWTF Tertiary Treatment, Phase 2
tertiary membrane filtration equipment pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-2808. The
Council is also requested to authorize publishing a notice in the newspaper
stating the City’s intent to sole-source procure said tertiary filtration membrane
equipment from this manufacturer and authorize Wastewater staff to negotiate
and Mayor to execute a purchase agreement for the membrane filtration
equipment.

HISTORY:

The Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department is currently in the design
phase for the Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 improvements to the City’s Advanced
Wastewater Treatment Facility (AWTF). These improvements are necessary in
order for the City’s AWTF to comply with the requirements of the EPA National
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit that was issued
December 1, 2014, that allows for the discharge of treated wastewater into the
Spokane River. The design of the improvements follows the recommendations
and conclusions of various planning efforts including the May 2009 Phase 5
Preliminary Design Report, the December 2009 Wastewater Facility Plan
Amendment, the 2012 Update to the 2009 Wastewater Facility Plan Amendment,
the results of the August 2012 Low Phosphorus Demonstration Pilot Facility
Report, and the January 2013 Phase 5C Preliminary Engineering Report.

Construction of Phase 5C.1 - Initial Tertiary Membrane Filtration and Nitrification
Improvements, that incorporated the GE Water & Process Technologies
membrane filtration system, was completed in March 2015. After one year of
operation this full-scale pilot has resulted in very low phosphorus levels in the
treated wastewater (effluent) from the Tertiary Membrane Filtration (TMF) facility.
It is apparent that using the tertiary membrane filtration system will enable the
City to meet the stringent effluent phosphorus limits of the NPDES permit.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:
As a result of the various planning and engineering efforts referenced
above, estimated costs were developed for the necessary improvements to the

PW Staff Report Sole Source Membrane Filtration Equipment March 21, 2016
Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "C"



AWTF for permit compliance and future wastewater flow projections. In April
2013, the City petitioned and received judicial confirmation from the ldaho 1%
Judicial District Court to incur $33.59M in indebtedness for the necessary
improvements to the AWTF. The construction cost of Phase 5C.1 ($8,670,376)
was funded through the Clean Water State Revolving Loan Fund administered by
Idaho Department of Environmental Quality (IDEQ). The Tertiary Treatment
Phase 2 Project has obtained a $20,000,000 loan through the same IDEQ Clean
Water State Revolving Loan Fund for the design and construction of the
improvements. This funding source will fund the proposed membrane filtration
equipment to be procured from GE Water & Process Technologies. Itis
estimated that the value of the sole source contract with GE Water & Process
Technologies will be approximately $ 5,500,000.

DISCUSSION:

Idaho Code § 67-2808 (copy attached) allows sole source expenditures if
the governing board declares that there is only one vendor reasonably available
for the personal property to be acquired. Wastewater staff contends that the
proposed membrane filtration equipment meets the criteria of I.C. 8 67-2808-(2)-
(a)-(ii): “Where the compatibility of equipment, components, accessories,
computer software, replacement parts or service is the paramount consideration”.
Since the performance of the GE Water & Process Technologies membranes
was successfully tested and evaluated in the 2011 Low Phosphorus
Demonstration Facility Report, and were subsequently installed as part of the
Phase 5C.1 project, compatibility is indeed of “paramount consideration” for the
Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 project. The City’s design consultant for this project,
HDR Engineering, Inc., has provided further written justification for the City’s
consideration of the sole-source procurement of the filtration equipment and is
attached to this staff report.

DECISION POINT / RECOMMENDATION:

Wastewater staff recommends that the City Council: 1.) Declare that GE
Water & Process Technologies, Inc. is the sole vendor of the AWTF Tertiary
Treatment Phase 2 tertiary membrane filtration equipment, 2.) Authorize the
publication of a notice of intent to sole-source procure this tertiary membrane
filtration equipment and 3.) Authorize Wastewater staff to negotiate, and the
Mayor to execute, a purchase agreement with GE Water & Process
Technologies, Inc. for said tertiary membrane filtration equipment.

PW Staff Report Sole Source Membrane Filtration Equipment March 21, 2016
Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "C"



Idaho Statutes

TITLE 67
STATE GOVERNMENT AND STATE AFFAIRS

CHAPTER 28
PURCHASING BY POLITICAL SUBDIVISIONS

67-2808. EMERGENCY EXPENDITURES -- SOLE SOURCE EXPENDITURES. (1)

Emergency expenditures.

(a) The governing board of a political subdivision may declare that
an emergency exists and that the public interest and necessity demand
the immediate expenditure of public money if:
(i) There is a great public calamity, such as an extraordinary
fire, flood, storm, epidemic or other disaster;
(ii) It is necessary to do emergency work to prepare for the
national or local defense; or
(iii) It is necessary to do emergency work to safeguard life,
health or property.
(b) Upon making the declaration of emergency, any sum required in the
emergency may be expended without compliance with formal bidding
procedures.
(2) Sole source expenditures.
(a) The governing board of a political subdivision may declare that
there is only one (1) vendor if there is only one (1) vendor for the
public works construction, services or personal property to be
acquired. For purposes of this subsection, only one (1) vendor shall
refer to situations where there is only one (1) source reasonably
available and shall include, but not be limited to, the following
situations:
(i) Where public works construction, services or personal
property is required to respond to a life-threatening situation
or a situation which is immediately detrimental to the public
welfare or property;
(ko) Where the compatibility of equipment, components,
accessories, computer software, replacement parts or service is
the paramount consideration;
(iii) Where a sole supplier's item is needed for trial use or

testing;

(iv) The purchase of mass-produced movies, videos, books or
other copyrighted materials;

(v) The purchase of public works construction, services or

personal property for which it is determined there is no

functional equivalent;

(vi) The purchase of public utility services;

(vii) The purchase of products, merchandise or trademarked goods

for resale at a political subdivision facility; or

(viii) Where competitive solicitation is impractical,

disadvantageous or unreasonable under the circumstances.
(b) Upon making the declaration that there is only one (1) vendor for
public works construction, services or personal property, unless the
public works construction, services or personal property is required
for a life-threatening situation or a situation that is immediately
detrimental to the public welfare or property, notice of a sole source
procurement shall be published in the official newspaper of the
political subdivision at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to
the award of the contract.

History:

secC.

[67-2808, added 2005, ch. 213, sec. 37, p. 678; am. 2013, ch. 344,
2, p. 928.]



Sole Source Procurement of Membrane
Filtration Equipment

City of

Coeur d'Ale
IDAHO

March 21, 2016 Public Works Com
Presented by: H. Sid Fredrickso
Coeur d’Alene Wastewater

Coeur d’Alene Advanced Wastewater Treat

3/17/2016



3/17/2016

Tertiary Membrane Filtration Facility

GE Membrane Filter Cassette




3/17/2016

GE Membrane Filter Cassette Being Insta
Membrane Tank

Permeate Pump Gallery in TMF Bui




AWTF Phase 5 Improvements

Phase 5C.1 (Completed March 2015)

* Constructed TMF building and tankage,
pump station and piping

* Procured and installed GE membrane

filtration system for 1 MGD flow (1/3 of
total plant flow) as full-scale pilot study.

* Total Project Cost =$ 12,581,261
(58,670,367 Loan Funding)

AWTF Phase 5 Improvements

(continued)

Phase 5C.2 (Tertiary Treatment Phase 2)

* Improvements include construction of
additional primary and secondary
clarifiers, chemical system expansion and
completion of tertiary membrane
filtration system for flows up to 5 MGD.

* Currently in design. Estimated project
cost = $20,000,000. (100% Loan Funding)

3/17/2016



3/17/2016

Reasons For a Sole Source Purchase of
GE Membrane Filer Equipment

* Compatibility With Existing Membranes

— Having only one manufacturer of
membranes within the AWTF eliminates
duplication of replacement parts invento

— Consistency of manufacturer’s warrant
service and operational computer so

— Provides for consistent operator tr
operational protocols.




FoR

hdrinc.com

March 16, 2016

Mr. Jim Remitz

City of Coeur d’Alene
710 E. Mullan Avenue
Coeur d’Alene, ID 83814

Subject: Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility
Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements
Sole Source Justification for Procurement of Membrane Operating System

Dear Mr. Remitz,

The purpose of this letter is to provide the City of Coeur d’Alene with technical information related to
the procurement of additional membrane operating system equipment from GE Water & Process
Technologies (GE) for the Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility (AWTF) Tertiary Treatment
Phase 2 Improvements project in accordance with requirements for political subdivisions of the
state of Idaho.

Background

From 2009 to 2011, the City operated the Low Phosphorus Demonstration Pilot Facility to address
questions regarding full-scale performance and reliability of three different treatment technologies to
meet low effluent phosphorus concentrations under variable influent flows and loads. The
membrane operating system that was competitively bid, procured, installed, and operated for the
tertiary membrane filtration (TMF) process included the GE ZeeWeed 500D low pressure,
reinforced hollow fiber ultra-filtration membranes.

In 2012, prior to the start of the detailed design for the Phase 5C.1 Initial TMF and Nitrification
Improvements (now referred to as Phase 1) project, two different types of membranes
manufactured by four different manufacturers were evaluated. The GE ZeeWeed 500D
membranes, and their associated operating system, were determined to be the only viable hollow
reinforced ultrafiltration membranes in the United States with full-scale municipal experience and
the ability to meet the City’s permit requirements and as such were sole sourced for that project.

Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements

The Tertiary Treatment Phase 2 Improvements project continues the phased implementation of
improvements necessary to comply with the City’s current EPA Nation Pollution Discharge
Elimination System (NPDES) permit that became effective December 1, 2014. Phase 2 will
increase the membrane filtration capacity from 1.0 million gallons per day (mgd) to a 5.0 mgd. The
two existing membrane filtration trains constructed during the Phase 1 Improvements have three of
six possible slots populated with membrane cassettes. Three additional membrane cassettes will be
added to each of these existing filtration trains. Three additional filtration trains (membranes and
associated permeate pumps and valves) will also be constructed to increase treatment capacity.

Use UPDATE/INSERT ADDRESS feature in ribbon

Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "C"



mzeltner
Highlight


Procurement of the membrane operating system components for the TMF process requires careful
coordination to allow for incorporation of manufacturer specific details in the final design and to
account for the lengthy procurement process (equipment shipment is typically estimated at greater
than 26 weeks after order acceptance).

Procurement

Consideration was given to several methods of procurement for the membrane operating system:
inclusion in the general contractor construction contract; separate equipment procurement through
competitive bid; and sole source procurement with negotiated terms and pricing. For several
reasons, sole source procurement of the membrane operating system with negotiated terms and
pricing has been recommended to the City as the most appropriate approach. Several important
considerations support this decision including the unique nature of the pilot testing already
conducted by the City to identify key design parameters; the need for a reinforced membrane
product; and most significantly, compatibility with the existing operating system equipment already
installed during Phase 1 including membranes, pumping systems, fine strainers, chemical cleaning
systems, and instruments. It is also important to note that the operating system controls are
complex and the final system configuration requires commonality of equipment for efficiency and
cost effectiveness.

Procurement requirements for all political subdivisions of the State of Idaho are governed by Idaho
Statute Title 67 - State Government and State Affairs, Chapter 28 Purchasing by Political
Subdivisions. The full statute is available at
http://www.leqislature.idaho.gov/idstat/Title67/T67CH28.htm. The legislative intent of this statute for
purchasing by a political subdivision includes:

» Efficient and cost-effective procurement of goods and services.

» Procurement by way of a publicly accountable process that respects the shared goals of
economy and quality.

*  Purchase from vendors with a significant Idaho economic presence.

Section 67-2808, Subsection (2) applies to sole source expenditures if the governing board
declares that there is only one vendor for the personal property to be acquired. Situations where
only one source is reasonably available include, but are not limited to the following:

*  Where the compatibility of equipment, components, accessories, computer software,
replacement parts or service is the paramount consideration;

» The purchase of property for which it is determined there is no functional equivalent;

»  Where competitive solicitation is impractical, disadvantageous or unreasonable under the
circumstances.

Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "C"



Notice of sole source procurement shall be published in the official newspaper of the political
subdivision at least fourteen (14) calendar days prior to the award of the contract.

EQUIPMENT COMPATIBILITY

As previously mentioned, the Phase 1 Improvements project installed a membrane operating
system consisting of GE ZeeWeed 500D membranes. This existing system has been in operation
for over a year. By installing additional membranes and related equipment from the same
manufacturer, the City will be able to expand the existing system with commonality of systems and
equipment. If the City were to not to pursue a sole source expenditure, it may be faced with a
different membrane operating system which has alternate operations and maintenance procedures
requiring additional operator training, increased spare parts inventory, and modifications to
improvements already constructed. Compatibility of equipment will allow for the most efficient
operations and maintenance.

Implementation

Following a sole source determination by the City, a scope of supply and fair price will be
negotiated with GE. The scope of supply will include the same membranes and other equipment
that matches existing equipment. To demonstrate price fairness, GE will be required to provide
pricing information from competitively bid projects of similar scope of supply and magnitude.

By matching existing equipment and systems where feasible, preliminary design information
provided by GE can be incorporated earlier in the detailed design of the overall system, shortening
the overall implementation schedule.

Sincerely,
HDR Engineering, Inc.

Michael S. Zeltner, PE
Associate | Project Manager

Cc: Sid Fredrickson, City Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department
Don Keil, City Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department
Casey Fisher, City Coeur d’Alene Wastewater Department
Dave Clark, HDR
John Koch, HDR

Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "C"



City of Coeur d’Alene
FIRE DEPARTMENT

“City of Excellence”

Staff Report
Date: 2-17-16
From: Jim Washko, Deputy Chief
Re: Blackwell Island Fireboat Moorage

DECISION POINT:
To accept the MOU on behalf of the Fire Department for moorage of Fireboat in
Kootenai Counties enclosed boat house.

HISTORY:

For the last 10 years or more Kootenai County Fire & Rescue (KCFR) has been housing
their fireboat in an enclosed boathouse on Blackwell Island that is owned by Hagadone
Hospitality Co and leased by Kootenai County for Kootenai County Parks & Waterways
(KCPW) and KCFR. KCFR has decided to pull their boat off of the north end of the lake and
concentrate their efforts more on the Spokane River. With them moving from the boathouse this
creates an open slip. We have discussed this with the KCPW Director Nick Snyder and he has
agreed to lease the spot vacated by KCFR to the City of Coeur d’Alene/Fire Department.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

The lease for the boathouse to KCPW was $6335.00 for 2016/2017 budget year, which
runs November to November. The total cost will then be split 50/50 between CDAFD and
KCPW our share is $3167.50 for 12 months. This year is pro-rated to reflect putting the boat in
on May 1% — October 31%, with the monthly cost $263.95, 6 months x $263.95 = $1583.70 for
2016/17. In November of 2016 it will be the cost will be the full price of the 50/50 split for
2016/17 budget year.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:

Having the boat in the water in a secure location will give us the ability to protect our
equipment and respond in a timely manner at all hours to incidents on the water in Lake Coeur
d’Alene.

DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: To accept the MOU agreement with
Kootenai County for the moorage of our Fire Boat in the enclosed boat house in the Blackwell
Island Marina.



Memorandum of Understanding

City of Coeur d’Alene Use of Blackwell Island Marina Moorage

This MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (hereinafter “MOU”) is hereby entered
into by and between KOOTENAI COUNTY (hereinafter “County”), and the CITY OF
COEUR D’ALENE (hereinafter “City”).

PURPOSE. The purpose of this MOU is to confirm the shared use of the
Blackwell Island Marina moorage space, Boat Slip No. YC21 (hereinafter
“boathouse”), leased from Hagadone Hospitality Co. (hereinafter “HHC.”)

STATEMENT OF BACKGROUND INFORMATION. Shared use of the
boathouse allows the County and City to optimize use of the leased space and
share the costs thereof.

STATEMENT OF MUTUAL BENEFIT AND INTEREST. The County and the
City will work together to share use of the boathouse, providing for secure
storage and timely emergency response via watercraft where necessary.

V. THE COUNTY SHALL.:

a) Provide access to and use of one slip within the boathouse.

b) Consult the City with regard to any proposed repairs exceeding $1,000.00 in
costs.

c) Bear the first $1,000.00 in costs for any necessary repairs to the boathouse.

d) Share equally any costs above $1,000.00 for any necessary repairs to the
boathouse.

e) Provide an after-hours contact.

V. THE CITY SHALL.:

a) Share equally the annual lease cost for use of the boathouse, with payment
made to the Kootenai County Parks and Waterways Department before the
annual lease renewal date of October 20™.

b) Share equally any costs above the first $1,000.00 for any necessary repairs
to the boathouse.

c) Bear the cost of any modification necessary to accommodate city watercraft,
subject to the lessor’s approval.

d) Provide an after-hours contact.

e) Ensure that the terms of the HHC lease, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and
incorporated by reference, are met.

f) Maintain adequate property and liability insurance

MOU, City of Coeur d’Alene Boathouse Use 1

Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "D"



VI.

VII.

VIII.

Memorandum of Understanding

City of Coeur d’Alene Use of Blackwell Island Marina Moorage

PRINCIPAL MOU ADMINISTRATION CONTACTS:

Kootenai County City of Coeur d’Alene

KEY CONTACT: | Nick Snyder Jim Washko

Kootenai County Parks
AGENCY NAME: | and Waterways
Department

City of Coeur d’Alene Fire
Department

STREET

ADDRESS: 10905 N. Ramsey Road | 300 E Foster Ave

CITY STATE: Hayden, ID Coeur d’Alene, ID

PHONE

NUMBER: 208-446-1275 208-769-2340

FAX NUMBER: 208-446-1282 208-769-2343

EMAIL nsnyder@kcgov.us JWASHKO@cdaid.org

ADDRESS:

COMMENCEMENT/EXPIRATION DATE. This MOU shall be deemed executed
as of the date of last signature below, and shall be effective for five (5) years
thereafter, at which time it shall expire unless extended by mutual written
agreement. This MOU shall also expire upon the termination, for any reason, of
the HHC lease.

MUTUAL HOLD HARMLESS. The COUNTY agrees to indemnify and hold the
CITY harmless from any and all liability, loss, damage or claims, of any
description, which results from the negligence of the COUNTY and its
employees, officers and/or agents that the CITY may suffer arising out of or in
connection with this MOU.

The CITY agrees to indemnify and hold the COUNTY harmless from any and all
liability, loss, damage or claims, of any description, which results from the
negligence of the CITY and its employees, officers and/or agents that the
COUNTY may suffer arising out of or in connection with this MOU.

EARLY TERMINATION. Either party may terminate this MOU with thirty (30)
days’ written notice to the other party.

MODIFICATION. Modifications of this MOU may be made only by mutual
consent of the parties in a written agreement signed and dated by both parties.

MOU, City of Coeur d’Alene Boathouse Use 2

Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "D"



Memorandum of Understanding

City of Coeur d’Alene Use of Blackwell Island Marina Moorage

XI. PARTICIPATION IN SIMILAR ACTIVITIES. This MOU shall in no way restrict
the County or the City of Coeur d’Alene from participating in similar activities with
other public or private agencies, organizations, and individuals.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of
Understanding as of the last date written below.

DATED this day of , 2016.

CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE

Steve Widmyer, Mayor

ATTEST:

RENATA MCLEQOD, CITY CLERK

By:

DATED this day of , 2016.

KOOTENAI COUNTY
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

By:
Daniel H. Green, Chairman

By:

Marc Eberlein, Commissioner

By:
David Stewart, Commissioner

ATTEST:
JIM BRANNON, CLERK

By:

Deputy Clerk

MOU, City of Coeur d’Alene Boathouse Use 3

Resolution No. 16-017 Exhibit "D"



CITY COUNCIL
STAFF REPORT
DATE: April 5, 2016
FROM: Michael C. Gridley, City Attorney
SUBJECT: 816 Sherman Lease Amendment
DECISION POINT:

Whether the City should amend the lease agreement for 816 Sherman to extend the term for 6
months.

HISTORY:

The current lease agreement expires on April 30, 2016 for the building occupied by the Legal
department. Legal moved into this building in 2002 when the University of Idaho moved into
Harbor Center.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

The current rent is $2,400 per month and will remain at this rate for the 6 month extension.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:

The current space serves the needs of the Legal department and is close to City Hall. There is no
other comparable space near City Hall.

DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION:

The Legal Department recommends that Council approve the 6 month extension of the 816
Sherman lease agreement with Commercial Property Management, LLC.

F:\MuniServices\Council Packets\April 5, 2016\SR - 816 Sherman lease extension 2016.doc



"’ Commercial Property Management, LLC

Resolution No. 16-017

March 25, 2016

Mike Gridley

City Attorney

City of Coeur d'Alene

PO Box 489

Coeur D Alene, ID 83816

Dear Mike:

This letter will serve as an Amendment to your Lease for your space at 816 Sherman Avenue,
Suites 3, 4, & 5 Coeur d'Alene, Idaho 83814. Your lease will be extended for 6 months starting
May 1, 2016 and ending November 30, 2016. Rent to remain at $2,400.00 per month.

All terms and conditions of the original Lease agreement to remain the same except for the
following:

The Premises: The Lessor hereby Leases unto Lessee the Premises known as 816 Sherman
Avenue, Suites 3, 4, & 5 and basement, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814.

Please sign the acknowledgement below, and return to our office. Please contact me at 208/665-
6473 or 208/640-9470, if you have any questions.

Sincerely,
i operty Management LLC City of Coeur d'Alene (Mayor)
By:
Steve Widmyer

Date:

(208) 665-6473 or (208) 640-9470
Attest by City Clerk
By:

' Renata McLeod
Date:

Magnuson Properties Partnership (Owner)

By:

Date:

P.O. Box 3145
Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83816
Office: (208) 665-6473 » Fax (866) 293-6729

Exhibit "E"



ANNOUNCEMENTS



Memo to Council

DATE: March 21, 2016
RE: Appointments to Boards/Commissions/Committees

The following appointment is presented for your consideration for the April 5th Council
Meeting:

RUSSELL HERSRUD Pedestrian & Bicycle Advisory Committee

A copy of the data sheet has been placed by your mailboxes.

Sincerely,

Amy Ferguson
Executive Assistant

cc:  Renata McLeod, Municipal Services Director
Monte McCully, Ped/Bike Committee Liaison




Memo to Council

DATE: March 30, 2016
RE: Appointments to Boards/Commissions/Committees

The following appointment is presented for your consideration for the April 5th Council
Meeting:

CHRISTIE WOOD PARKS & RECREATION COMMISSION

A copy of the data sheet has been placed by your mailboxes.

Sincerely,

Amy Ferguson
Executive Assistant

cc: Renata McLeod, Municipal Services Director
Bill Greenwood/Chenoa Dahlberg




OTHER BUSINESS



Codlr d'Alene Staff Report from Human Resources
To: Mayor Widmyer and City Council

From: Melissa Tosi; Human Resources Director

Re: Civil Service Rule Amendments

Date: April 5, 2016

Decision Point: City Council is requested to approve the Civil Service Rule amendments as
recommended by the Human Resources Director, Fire Chief, and the Coeur d’Alene Fire
Department Local 710 President and approved by the Civil Service Commission.

History: The general purpose of the Civil Service Rules is to provide information and
standards for the Coeur d’Alene Fire Department Local 710 by assuring all persons in the
classified service receive fair and impartial treatment.

The Civil Service Rules have not been updated since March 2005. The current amendments
will bring the rules up to date regarding all aspects of the application and recruitment process,
hiring, promotions, discipline and general housekeeping changes. The Civil Service Rule
amendments were reviewed and approved by the Civil Service Commission on March 16,
2016.

Financial Analysis: There are no hard costs associated with these amendments.

Performance Analysis: Authorizing these rule amendments will provide consistent and up to
date standards to apply to the Coeur d’Alene Fire Department.

Recommendation: City Council is requested to approve the Civil Service Rule amendments
as approved by the Civil Service Commission.



ORDINANCE NO.
COUNCIL BILL NO. 16-1005

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING CHAPTER 2.68 CIVIL SERVICE
COMMISSION BY ESTABLISHING STAGGERED TERMS FOR COMMISSIONERS,
DELETING REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO COMMISSIONERS’ POLITICAL AFFILIATION,
PROVIDING THAT EXAMINATIONS SHALL BE SET BY THE FIRE CHIEF OR DESIGNEE
INSTEAD OF THE COMMISSION, PROVIDING FOR DISCIPLINE PURSUANT TO THE
PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE POLICY, AND ESTABLISHING THAT REPORTS OF THE
COMMISSION TO COUNCIL SHALL BE AS REQUIRED BY COUNCIL; PROVIDING
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING THE
PUBLICATION OF A SUMMARY AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, after recommendation by the Human Resources Director, it is deemed by the
Mayor and City Council to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene that said amendments
be adopted; NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene:
SECTION 1. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 2.68.020 is amended to read as follows:
2.68.020: MEMBERSHIP; TERM OF OFFICE; COMPENSATION; VACANCY:

The members of such commission shall be appointed by the mayor with the approval of the
council and members may, in like manner, be removed. The terms of office of such
commissioners shall be for the-term-ofa six (6) years staggered term,-ene-member-to-be-appointed
n-the-month-of April-of the-edd-numbered-years. The members of the civil service commission

shall serve without compensation, but their actual and necessary expenses shall be allowed by the
council. Any vacancy occurring in the civil service commission shall be filled as provided in this
section.

SECTION 2. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 2.68.030 is amended to read as follows:
2.68.030: QUALIFICATIONS:

No person shall be appointed a member of the civil service commission who is not a citizen of
the United States and a resident of the municipality for at least three (3) years immediately

precedlng hlsrappomtment and an elector of Kootena| County Ne%mepemanwe%membeps

Council Bill No. 16-1005 1|Page



SECTION 3. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 2.68.050 is amended to read as follows:
2.68.050: FIRE DEPARTMENT; APPOINTMENTS:

The classified civil service shall consist of all places of employment, except the fire chief and
assistant/deputy fire chief, now existing or hereafter created in or under the fire department. No
appointment to any of the places of employment in the fire department shall be made except
under and according to laws and rules and regulations of the civil service commission.

SECTION 4 . That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 2.68.070 is amended to read as follows:
2.68.070: EXAMINATIONS:

All applicants for places of employment in the classified civil service shall be subject to
examination which shall be public, competitive and free, and shall be held at such times and
places as the eivil-service-commission fire chief or designee shal-from-time-to-thme-determine,
provided that all present incumbents shall be subject to the provisions of state statutes. Such
examinations shall be for the purpose of determining the qualifications of applicants for positions
and shall be practical and shall fairly test the fitness in every respect of the persons examined to
discharge the duties of the position to which they seek to be appointed, and shall include tests of
physical qualifications and health.

SECTION 5. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 2.68.080 is amended to read as follows:
2.68.080: QUALIFICATIONS AND CAUSES FOR DISCHARGE OR PENALTY:

An applicant for a position of any kind under civil service must meet the requirements for
employment as established by the city council through the personnel rules and regulations, and
such other requirements as established by the-commission law for the position to which
appointment is sought. All applicants hereafter appointed, and all incumbents, shall hold an
offlce place, posmon or employment under the provisions of the act codified in this chapter Shby

commission and any such person shall be d|SC|pI|ned pursuant to the progressive d|SC|pI|ne
standard operating procedures established by the department for violations of department policies
and rules, the city’s personnel rules, and the law.:

Council Bill No. 16-1005 2|Page



SECTION 6. That Coeur d'Alene Municipal Code Section 2.68.100 is amended to read as follows:
2.68.100: ANNUALREPORT-AND-SPECIAL REPORTS:

The civil service commission shall ir+-April-ef-eachyear-make an-anndal report to the council;
and-as-many-speetal-reperts as the council shall from time to time require.

SECTION 7. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby
repealed.

SECTION 8. Neither the adoption of this ordinance nor the repeal of any ordinance shall, in any
manner, affect the prosecution for violation of such ordinance committed prior to the effective date
of this ordinance or be construed as a waiver of any license or penalty due under any such ordinance
or in any manner affect the validity of any action heretofore taken by the City of Coeur d'Alene City
Council or the validity of any such action to be taken upon matters pending before the City Council
on the effective date of this ordinance.

SECTION 9. The provisions of this ordinance are severable and if any provision, clause, sentence,
subsection, word or part thereof is held illegal, invalid, or unconstitutional or inapplicable to any
person or circumstance, such illegality, invalidity or unconstitutionality or inapplicability shall not
affect or impair any of the remaining provisions, clauses, sentences, subsections, words or parts of
this ordinance or their application to other persons or circumstances. It is hereby declared to be the
legislative intent that this ordinance would have been adopted if such illegal, invalid or
unconstitutional provision, clause sentence, subsection, word, or part had not been included therein,

Council Bill No. 16-1005 3|Page



and if such person or circumstance to which the ordinance or part thereof is held inapplicable had
been specifically exempt therefrom.

SECTION 10. After its passage and adoption, a summary of this Ordinance, under the
provisions of the Idaho Code, shall be published once in the official newspaper of the City of
Coeur d'Alene, and upon such publication shall be in full force and effect.

Passed under suspension of rules upon which a roll call vote was duly taken and duly

enacted an Ordinance of the City of Coeur d’Alene at a regular session of the City Council on
April 5™, 2016.

APPROVED, ADOPTED and SIGNED this 5 day of April, 2016.

Steve Widmyer, Mayor
ATTEST:

Renata McLeod, City Clerk

Council Bill No. 16-1005 4|Page



SUMMARY OF COEUR D’ALENE ORDINANCE NO.
Amending Chapter 2.68 entitled Civil Service Commission

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MUNICIPAL CODE OF THE CITY OF COEUR
D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO, AMENDING CHAPTER 2.68 CIVIL SERVICE
COMMISSION BY ESTABLISHING STAGGERED TERMS FOR COMMISSIONERS,
DELETING REQUIREMENTS RELATED TO COMMISSIONERS’ POLITICAL AFFILIATION,
PROVIDING THAT EXAMINATIONS SHALL BE SET BY THE FIRE CHIEF OR DESIGNEE
INSTEAD OF THE COMMISSION, PROVIDING FOR DISCIPLINE PURSUANT TO THE
PROGRESSIVE DISCIPLINE POLICY, AND ESTABLISHING THAT REPORTS OF THE
COMMISSION TO COUNCIL SHALL BE AS REQUIRED BY COUNCIL; PROVIDING
REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY. THE
ORDINANCE SHALL BE EFFECTIVE UPON PUBLICATION OF THIS SUMMARY. THE
FULL TEXT OF THE SUMMARIZED ORDINANCE NO. IS AVAILABLE AT COEUR
D’ALENE CITY HALL, 710 E. MULLAN AVENUE, COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO 83814 IN THE
OFFICE OF THE CITY CLERK.

Renata McLeod, City Clerk

Council Bill No. 16-1005 1|Page



STATEMENT OF LEGAL ADVISOR

I, Randall R. Adams, am a Chief Deputy City Attorney for the City of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho.
I have examined the attached summary of Coeur d'Alene Ordinance No. , Amending Chapter
2.68 entitled Civil Service Commission, and find it to be a true and complete summary of said
ordinance which provides adequate notice to the public of the context thereof.

DATED this 5" day of April, 2016.

Randall R. Adams, Chief Deputy City Attorney

Council Bill No. 16-1005 2|Page



RESOLUTION NO. 16-018

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO
APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO THE COEUR D’ALENE CIVIL SERVICE RULES.

WHEREAS, Municipal Code Section 2.68.060 authorizes the Civil Service Commission to
promulgate all rules and regulations necessary to carry out the provisions of the Civil Service Law;
and

WHEREAS, the Civil Service Commission previously adopted "Civil Service Rules of the
Fire Departments of Coeur d'Alene, Idaho™ and amendments thereto; and

WHEREAS, the Civil Service Commission has reviewed and recommended additional
amendments to the Civil Service Rules as identified on Exhibit “A” hereto and by reference made a
part hereof; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the
citizens thereof to approve the amendments to the Civil Service Rules;

NOW THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene, that the
City authorize the amendments in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and
incorporated herein by reference, with the provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City
Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said Civil Service Rules to the extent the substantive
provisions of the Civil Service Rules remain intact.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk be, and they hereby are,
authorized to execute such amendments on behalf of the City and said amendments to the Coeur
d'Alene Civil Service Rules are hereby approved.

DATED this 5" day of April, 2016.

Steve Widmyer, Mayor
ATTEST:

Renata McLeod, City Clerk

Resolution No. 16-018 1|Page



Motion by , Seconded by , to adopt the foregoing
resolution.

ROLL CALL:
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER ENGLISH Voted

was absent. Motion

Resolution No. 16-018 2|Page



City of Coeur d’Alene
Civil Service Rules

A/\w@m&

City o

Coeur d'Alene
IDAHO

Coeur d’Alene Fire Department

Last Amended: . 2016

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 1 As amended 12/02/04March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



CONTENTS

Rulel. General——BEFRINIHONS........ooiii e Page #3
Rule 2%, ClasSITICAtION........ciiiiiiieiie e e Page # 3
Rule 32. QUAlITICALIONS. ......cceiiiiie e Page # 4
Rule 43. Recruitment APPHCAtIONS........ccooiiiiiiieiiiie e Page #5
Rule 54. ReCruitment TeSTING.......coiueriiiiiie et Page #5
Rule 65. Firefighter Entry-Level ListEhghsle List.........ccoocoviiiiiiiiiiiieeeee Page # 8
Rule 76. CertifiCatiON.......ccoouiiieiiie e e e Page # 9
Rule 87. APPOINTMENTS.......coiiiieiieieeie st es Page # 10
Rule 98. Provisional, Temporary and Emergency Appointments.............ccccceeneee Page # 11
RuUle 109. PrOMOLIONS.......coiuiiiiitieieeie ettt Page # 12
Rule 118. Removals and SUSPENSIONS.........c.coiiiiiieniiiie e Page # 14

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 2 As amended 12/02/04March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



CIVIL SERVICE RULES

Rule 1
GENERAL

Section 1. PURPOSE: The general purpose of these rules is to provide information and
standards for the establishment, maintenance, and duration of applicant pools maintained by
Civil Service and assuring all persons in the classified service receive fair and impartial
treatment.

Section 2. MEETINGS: Meetings of the Commission shall be held whenever called by the
civil service commission chairman, or by two (2) commissioners.

Section 3. AMENDMENTS:No amendments to these rules, or suspension thereof, shall be
made except under the approval of the City Council.

Section 4. ORDER OF BUSINESS: Robert's "Rules of Order," except as otherwise herein
provided, shall guide the commission in its proceedings.

Section 5. CIVIL SERVICE ADVISORY BOARD: A Civil Service Advisory Board shall be
established to serve as a review panel which will seek for resolution of grievances and/or appeals
prior to coming before the Civil Service Commission. The Advisory Board will consist of the
Human Resources Director or his/her appointee, the Fire Chief, the City Administrator or his/her
appointee, and the Local 710 President or his/her appointee.

Section 6. FIRE CHIEF: The term "Fire Chief," as used herein, shall include the Fire Chief, and
his/her designees.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 3 As amended 12/02/64March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Rule 21
CLASSIFICATION

Section 1. CLASSIFICATION: For eonvenience-and-designationtn-carrying-on-the

purposes of conducting examinations, +a-certifying eligibles for appointments and promotions
and in making removals, the Fire Department of the City of Coeur d'Alene shall be divided into
and restricted to such ranks elasses-and-grades as the City Council ivH-Service-Commission may
adopt. No appeintment alteration to any such elass-or-grade rank or individual within said rank
shall be made except under and according to the rules hereinafter mentioned.

Section 2. TITLES: Titles for each position in the classified service shall be as-rearly
as-pessible-descriptive of the general duties attached-therete and indicative of the rankgrade.

Section 3. NEW POSITIONS: Whenever a new rankeffice-erplace is created, report of
such action shall be made to the Commission by the department head, setting forth a statement of

the general duties and-ethermatters-affectingthe-characterand-grade-of such position.

Section 4. No portion of these rules shall in any manner whatsoever apply to the positions of
Fire Chief or Deputy Chiefs_except as specifically provided herein.

Rule 32
QUALIFICATIONS

Section 1. An applicant not currently covered ferapeosition-of-any-kind-under-by these Civil
Service Rules must meet the following criteria:

A. Must be a citizen of the United States of America and must be able to read and write the
English language.

B. Must be a minimum of nineteen (19) years of age at the time of written examination.

C. Must successfully pass a background check and a physician’s medical/physical

gxamination.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 4 As amended 12/02/64March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Section 24. DISQUALIFICATIONS: The CityCommission may refuse to examine an
applicant, or after examination, to certify an eligible and may remove his/her name from the
eligible list for any of the following reasons:

@) Dismissal from the Armed Forces serviee for delinquency or misconduct.
(b) Mental or physical unfitness for the position applied for.
(©) Dishonest, criminal, immoral or notoriously disgraceful conduct.

(d) Intentional false statement in any material fact, er deception or fraud; in securing
examination, certification or appointment.

o bitual intoxieating i |

Section 35. BURDEN OF PROOF: The burden of proof of good character in all cases
shall be upon the applicant and the filing of any certification to that effect shall not debar the
Commisston-City from demanding or obtaining further proof of good character to its full
satisfaction.

Rule 43
RECRUITMENT APPLICATIONS

Section 1. APPLICATIONS:  No person shall be included in the examination process for
a position in the classified service until -an application is submitted to the Human Resources
Department which shall show that the requirements set forth in Rule 2 are met.

Section 2. FILING APPLICATIONS: The CemmissienHuman Resources Department—+a
catling-any-examination;-shall provide not less than two (2) weeks for submission of an

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 5 As amended 12/02/64March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



appllcatlon for any examlnatlonieﬁheqeeemdwmmMMrappheaﬂen%N%bHeeewedm

emed necessary

by the Human Resources Dwector@emmw&en—NeappheaHenw#Lbereeewed%ss%harr&hree
Lt b e cle e pe e o

Section 3. APPLICATIONS NOT TO BE RETURNED: Applications and
accompanying certificates unless returned for correction will remain on file in the office of
Human Resources the-Cemmission-and under no circumstances be returned to the applicants.
Applications returned for correction must be back in the office of Human Resourcesthe
Commission before the date-ef-examinationapplication deadline.

Rule 54
RECRUITMENT TESTING

Section 1. TIME, PLACE AND NOTICE: Recruitment testing used to establish an
eligibility list for appointment or promotion in the service, shall be held at such times and places
as shall be designated by the Fire Chief and Human Resources Director. After the deadline for
submitting applications has closed, a written notice of the recruitment testing shall be matled
provided to ergiven-te each person having an application on file.  Such notice shal-be-deemed
official-and -shall entitle-allow the applicant helder to participate in the testing process.

Section 2. COMPETITIVE: All examinations held under the provisions of these rules
shall be competitive.

Section 3. LIMITATIONS: No limitations shall be made as to the number of applicants
to be received for examination. The Fire Chief and Human Resources Director may limit the
number of applicants to be examined at any one time, according to the needs of the City or for
convenience in conducting the examination.

Section 4. SUBJECTS, WEIGHTS AND GENERAL AVERAGES: The testing process
shall embrace certain subjects, to which weights shall be assigned, the weight given to each
subject to represent its relative value in ascertaining the fitness of the applicant. Each subject
tested shall be rated independently by the examiners. The examiners ratings on the scale of 100
on each subject separately shall be multiplied by the weight assigned to the subject. The
resulting products shall be added and the total product divided by the total weights of all subjects
in the examinations. The resulting quotient is the general average which shall be used in
determining the order in which the name of the candidate shall appear on the eligible list._The
physical agility examination shall be pass/fail only and not scored.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 6 As amended 12/02/04March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Section 5. QUESTIONS SHALL BE PRACTICAL:  Examinations shall be practical and
relevant to those matters which will fairly test the general fitness of the persons examined to
discharge the duties of the position to which they seek to be appointed. No question pertaining to
race, gender, age, national origin, religion, disability, marital status, or political opinions or
affiliations will be allowed at any examination or proceeding.

Section 6. WRITTEN OR ORAL: Whenever practical, testing shall be in writing, and,
when appropriate, include physical and practical tests. The Fire Chief may act as a committee or
appoint a committee to conduct -examinations and interviews on certain subjects when #-his
judgment-that the chief determines it is the best means of determining a candidate's qualifications
for the position applied for. For entry-level firefighter interviews, the committee shall consist of
a minimum of three (3) and a maximum of five (5) board members. Three (3) board members
will consist of IAFF Local 710 employees in good standing.

In sueh-oral examinations, any willful false statement regarding past record or experience shall be
a-grounds for withholding the name of a candidate from an eligible list, and shall be a-grounds
for dlscharge and dlsquallfles a candldate from taklng any future examlnatlons —anel—befe#e—the

(a) Conversation and Communication: All conversation or communication between
or among applicants during the written examination is strictly prohibited.

(b) Cannot Leave the Room: During testing, no applicant will be allowed or
permitted to leave the room unless approved by the proctor.

(c) Penalty for Withdrawal: An applicant who withdraws from the written
examination after filling out their identification sheet and receiving a copy of the
guestions shall be considered as having failed.

(d) Concealing Identity: All examinations shall be conducted and managed so that no
written examination paper will disclose the name or identity of any applicant until
all the examination papers have been marked.

(e) Identification Marks: Any applicant in an examination who places any
identification mark on their written examination papers shall be deprived of all
benefits under such examination, and no papers will be graded having such marks.
The following will be "identification marks"":

a. The real name or address of the applicant.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 7 As amended 12/02/64March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



b. Any assumed or fictitious name or address.

Names of individuals or firms used on any of the answer sheets.

d. Any initials, lines, sign marks or characters that may indicate the identity
of the applicant.

o

Section 7. MEDICAL ANB-PHYSICAL-EXAMINATION:  The Fire Chief may-will
require a medical andphysical examinations by any physician chosen by the Fire Chief to
determine whether applicants for any position are fit for the position applied for. The result of
such medical examination shall be considered only in determining the fitness of the applicant to

Section 8. VETERANS' PREFERENCE: Any employment preference granted to
veterans under the laws of the State of Idaho shall be applicable under these rules.

Section 9. INSTRUCTION: All necessary instructions will be made-given to
participating applicants_and all applicants are required to follow the directions of the proctor.
Testing proctors are forbidden te-from explaining the meaning of any questions or to make
remarks or suggestions that may assist in answers to the test questions.

Section 103. NO HELP ALLOWED: No help of any kind will be allowed during any
examination. Any written or printed matter that might be of aid in the-any testing process, must
be handed in before the testing begins. Any attempt to cheat or copy from a competitor as an
entry-level applicant, will render the applicant guity-persen ineligible for public service at any

time. Any attempt to cheat or copy as a promotional applicant, may result in discipline up to and
including termination.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 8 As amended 12/02/64March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



o initials_lines. si I | | - he identity of t
appheant:

Section 116. TEST SCORING: No unnecessary delay will occur in the scoring of any test.

Section 12#. NOTICE OF RESULT: As soon as scoring is completed the applicants will
be notified of their result and whether they passed or failed, and their position on the eligible list.

Section 138. PAPERS NOT RETURNED: After the testing is completed, and the eligible list
established, all recruitment documentation becomes the permanent-property of the City and will
be kept on file in the Human Resources Department.

Section 149. PROMOTIONAL EXAMINATION: Promotional examinations will be conducted
under the same rules that apply to original entrance examinations.

Section 1528. EXAMINING BOARD: Any examining board or proctor may include any
such person as may be appointed by the Fire Chief.

Section 162%. POSTPONEMENT OF CONTINUANCE OF EXAMINATION: Whenever it
may appear to the Fire Chief, by reason of the small number of applicants for any examination,
either original or promotional, that such examination has not been given sufficient publicity, or
for other good and sufficient cause, the process may be postponed to a later date. All persons
having applications on file shall be immediately notified of the postponement or continuance and
shall be further notified of the time at which they are to appear for such examination.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 9 As amended 12/02/04March 16, 2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Rule 65
FIREFIGHTER ENTRY-LEVELELIGIBLE LIST

Section 1. MINIMUM STANDING:  Entry-level aApplicants whose general average
upon examination is less than seventy (70) percent shall be excluded from the eligible list of
candidates, and they shall be considered as having failed.

Section 2. ENROLLMENT: Successful entry-level candidates shall be enrolled upon the
"Eligible List" in the order of their general average standing. When two or more Eligibles have
recelved the same average ratlng the flrst f|||ng hl&thelr their applications shall have prlorlty O

Section 3. REMOVALFROM EXPIRATION OF LISTS: All persons who have been
on the Eligible List for two (2) years without appointment shall be removed therefrom and can
only be returned thereto upon regular examination.

Section 4. APPLICANT ON TWO LISTS: Applicantstions may be enrolled on two (2)
eligible registers-lists at the same time.

Section 5. APPOINTEE AND APPLICANT: Any appointee to a position from the eligible
register-list shall be permitted to hold rank on only one other eligible registerlist.

Section 6#. REMOVALS FROM THE ELIGIBLE LISTS: The Human Resources

Department Gemmission shall remove the name of an eligible from the list if the eligible has:
@) Failed to receive appointment after three (3) certifications.
(b) Failed to respond to a notice of appointment within four days; however, if the
candidate presents satisfactory reasons for such failure to respond within thirty

(30) days, the Commission may reinstate his/her name upon the eligible list.

(©) Been dishonorably discharged from the Armed ForcesU-S—-ArmyNawy,-or
Bl eras

(d) Or for cause as in Rule 32, Section 4.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 10 As amended 12/02/04March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



(e) Nothing in these rules shall prohibit the City Council from reducing the force
employed, but such reduction shall be effected in inverse order of seniority of
employment, and any employee who is removed on this account shall be placed at
the head of the eligible list.

Rule 76
CERTIFICATION

Section 1. REQUISITION AND CERTIFICATION:  Whenever a position in the
Classified Civil Service is to be filled, the Fire Chief shall request in writing to the Human
Resources Director for the certification and list of eligibles, and the Human Resources Director
shall, as soon as possible, certify to the Fire Chief -the names of five (5) times the number of
persons necessary to fill an entry-level firefighter position and three (3) times the number of
persons necessary to fill any promotional sueh position:. The Human Resources Director shall
always certify the persons having the highest standing on the eligible list for the position to be
filled;-andprovided-further-that-alessposition-to-be-filed; and;provided; further that a less
number may be certified when there is not the required number on the eligible list. All persons
not appointed shall remain on the eligible list in the relative position.

Section 2. APPOINTMENT:  The Fire Chief shall notify the Human Resource Director in

writing, the names selected for appointment-and-such-persens-shall-be-notified-as-perRule7;
Sesbion

Rule 8%
APPOINTMENTS

Section 1. APPOINTMENTS HOW MADE: No appointing official shall select or appoint
any person for a position, employment or promotion within the classified service, except in
accordance with the Civil Service Rules.

Section 2. VACANCIES HOW FILLED: Vacancies in the classified service if not
filled by transfer, shall be filled by requisition and certification as provided in Rule 76- Upon
receipt of a certification, the appointing official shall within tea-thirty (230) days, appoint one of
the persons certified to fill the vacant position-and-netify-the-Commission. Filling vacancies for
promotional appointments for employees on an approved leave of absence or on account of
military leave will be as follows:

(a) Appeintmentefa person certified from a promotional list who is on an approved

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 11 As amended 12/02/04March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



leave of absence or on account of military service_may be appointed.-asprovided-in-Rule
R e

(b) A person so appointed shall be re-employed in the advanee appointed promotional
position upon meeting position application-and qualifications-asprovidedinRule-15.

(c) When, upon such appointment, the position remains vacant by reason of the absence
of the appomtee a temporarv appomtment mav be made pursuant to Rule 9, Sectlon 2.

Section 3. RE-APPOINTMENT:When the name certified is one which has been removed
due to reduction of force, the appointing official shall have no choice. The person so certified

must be appointed within ten (10) days-and-repert-of same-fled-with-the- Commission.

Section 4. PROMOTIONAL APPOINTMENTS: When a vacancy is filled by
promotion, certification and appointment shall be made in the same manner as provided in Rule
76 and in Section 2 of this rule.

Section 58. DECLINATION OF APPOINTMENT: Whenever an eligible has been
appointed and declines to accept the appointment, he/she shall not be reinstated upon the eligible

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 12 As amended +2/02/64March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



I|st unless h+&the reason for decI|n|ng such appointment shall be con5|dered satisfactory by the

Section 69. PROBATIONARY PERIOD: Firefighters certified from an original entrance
eligible list shall be on probation for a period of one (1) year of actual service. Probation period
shall not include time served as a provisional employee but shall date from the time of regular
appointment from an eligible list. Within ten (10) days of the termination of such probationary
period, the appointing official shall fe-a-repertnotify Human Resources-with-the-Commission
eettﬁymg that said employee has met the requwements of the Department. -Upon+receipt-ofsuch
._The probationary period
may be extended by the Department Head and the Human Resources Director for a time not to
exceed six (6) additional months.

Section 738. INCOMPETENT PROBATIONERS: If the appointee shall be found
incompetent or inefficient in the performance of the duties of the position he is filling, the

appointing official shall eertHy-same-in-writing-te-the- Cemmission-notify Human Resources and

such probationer shall be dropped from the service.

Section 84X, CHANGE OF POSITIONS: An employee who leaves a position to accept
employment by certification from another eligible register-list shall be permanently separated
from the p05|t|0n formerly heIdJeymm except as |n th|s ruIe otherW|se prowded—prewded—that

3 and may be reinstated in
any vacancy in the same elassrandrgtﬁaderank from wh|ch mploye ehe was se separated; and
provided further, that where an officer or employee accepts certification to a higher position, the
duties of which are merely temporary, heemployee shall be reinstated in histheir former position
without loss of seniority when such higher duty is completed.

Rule 98
PROVISIONAL, TEMPORARY AND EMERGENCY APPOINTMENTS

Section 1. PROVISIONAL APPOINTMENT: Upon receipt of a requisition for persons to
fill a vacancy for which no eligible list exists, the Commission-Human Resources Director may
grant authority to the appointing official to make a provisional appointment pending
examination. As soon as an eligible list is secured for a position filled by provisional
appointment, the Gemmisston-Human Resources Director shall certify in the usual manner the
names of the eligibles standing highest on such eligible list and the appointing official shall make
regular appointment within tenthirty (2330) days of such certification. If no such appointment be

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 13 As amended 12/02/04March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



made the provisional appointment shall terminate at the expiration of the aforesaid ten-thirty
(330) days, unless otherwise approved by appointing official and the Human Resources

Directorerdered-by-the-Commission.

Section 2. TEMPORARY APPOINTMENT:  When services to be rendered are of a
temporary character for a limited period, or during a leave of absence, which has been approved
by the CemmisstonCity, of an employee who will return to the service of the City, the appointing
official shall inform the Human Resources DirectorGemmission, stating the duration of such

period, the rate of compensation, the authority for employing such temporary service, and other
conditions of employment, and may select for such employment one of the first three- five
persons on the eligible list, who after due notice of condltlons IS wrllrng to accept apporntment

gwepr Provisional and temporary appointment shaII not confer upon the appointee any prrvrlege
of appointment, promotion, transfer or reinstatement to any other position in service.

Section 43. EMERGENCY APPOINTMENTS: In cases of emergency, and for the purpose
of preventing the stoppage of public business, the appointing official may make an emergency
appointment for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days. Successive emergency appointments of
the same person shall not be permitted. Immediate report in writing of emergency appointments
must be made to the office of the Human Resources DirectorGivi-Service-Commission.

Rule 109
PROMOTIONS

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 14 As amended 12/02/04March 16

2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Section 12. METHOD OF PROMOTION: Whenever a vacancy in the
classified service exists, unless such vacancy is to be filled by transfer, it shall be filled by
promotion from the current eligibility list. Promotion shall be accomplished by means of a

competitive examination. Should re-ehigible-candidatesregister-orsheuld all candidates fail to

pass, re-examination for promotion will be ordered. Should no eligible candidates register, an

open competitive recruitment process may be held-erre-examinationfor-prometion-may-be
ordered.

Section 23. NOTICE OF PROMOTIONAL EXAMINATION: Notice of promotional
examination shall be in the Human Resources Department and in the Fire Department, and
posted not less than thirty (30) days prior to the examination. Such notice shall give the date and
process of the examination, and shall include eligibility requirements.

Section 34. EXAMINATIONS: The rules governing promotional examinations shall, except
as herein provided, be the same as for original entrance examinations.

Section 4. EXAMINATION CHALLENGES: An applicant may challenge the scope and
content of examination questions except questions asked in the oral interview. All challenges
must be filed in writing with the Human Resources Department before 5p.m. on the business day
following the date when the applicant took the examination.

Section 5. AVERAGES AND ELIGIBLES LISTS: Applicants' examinations shall be
scored on the scale of 100%, and -no applicant shall be entered on the eligibility list, who fails to
attain at least -70% on each step of the promotional examination process, with the exception of
the oral interview. The oral interview score will be averaged with the other exam steps
regardless of score. Overall testing average must be a minimum of seventy (70) percent to be
placed on the eligibility list. When two or more applicants have the same average rating,
preference on the eligible list shall be determined by the order in which they entered-the
servicewere hired with the Coeur d'Alene Fire Department. If applicants were both hired on the
same day, preference shall be determined by the ranking from the original eligible list from
which they were hired as an entry-level firefighter.

Section 6. REQUISITION AND CERTIFICATION:  Requisition and certification shall be
governed by Rule 6.

Section 7a. EXAMINATION_ AND PROMOTIONAL ELIGIBILITY:

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 15 As amended +2/02/64March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



(a) Fire Engineer: To be eligible to enter an examination and for promotion to Fire
Engineer, a person must have worked at least twelve-thirty-six (3236) current consecutive
months for the City of Coeur d'Alene Fire Department-and-have-suceessfully-completed
prsbeden,

(b) Fire Captain: To be eligible to enter an examination and for promotion to Fire
Captainkieutenant, a person must have worked at least twenty-fourseventy-two (2472)
current consecutive months for the City of Coeur d'Alene Fire Department and hold
current Fire Engineer certification or above.

(c) Battalion Chief: To be eligible to enter an examination and for promotion to

Battalion ChiefFire-Captain, a person must have worked at east-thirty-sixeighty-four
(3684) current consecutive months for the City of Coeur d'Alene Fire Department and

have held the rank of Fire Captain for a minimum of twelve (12) consecutive months.

(d) Fire Inspector: To be eligible to enter an examination and for promotion to Fire
Inspector, a person must have worked at least twelve (12) current consecutive months for
the City of Coeur d'Alene Fire Department in the rank of firefighter.

(e) An employee shall not be permitted to participate in a promotional examination while
on disciplinary probation.

Section 8. WORKING OUT OF CLASS

(a) Eligibility to work out of class as Fire Engineer: Must have at least twenty-four

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 16 As amended +2/02/64March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



(24) current consecutive months with the Coeur d’Alene Fire Department and must pass
the Coeur d’Alene Fire Department Fire Engineer Certification Program or be on the
current Fire Engineer promotional list. Battalion Chief approval.

Fire Engineer Certification: Consists of completion of department required prerequisites.
The Fire Engineer Certification shall be good for a maximum of two (2) years.

(b) Eligibility to work out of class as Fire Captain: Must have at least sixty (60)
current consecutive months with the Coeur d’Alene Fire Department. Must have a
current Fire Engineer Certification and current Fire Officer Certification. Battalion Chief
approval required.

Fire Officer Certification: Consists of completion of department required prerequisites.
The Fire Officer Certification shall be good for a maximum of two (2) years.

(c) Eligibility to work out of class as Battalion Chief: Must have at least seventy-two
(72) current consecutive months with the Coeur d’Alene Fire Department, twelve
consecutive months of which in the position of Fire Captain. Deputy Chief approval

required.

Section 98. APPLICATIONS:  Applications shall be made upon a form prescribed and
furnished by the Human Resources Department, and shall be filed in the-effice-of-the Human
Resources Department on or before the deadline stated on the promotional announcement.

Section 109. SENIORITY IN PROMOTION: Credit shall be given for length of current
consecutive service in the City of Coeur d'Alene Fire Department, and shall be given by adding
to an overall promotional test score of 70% or above as follows:

Possible

For years of service less than three (3) ......cccoovvvvevvrennne. 0 .0
For three (3) full years of SErvice........cccoocevvrviieniennnnne 1.0 1.0
For each full year of the next six (6) years
of service (4" year through the 9™ year)

................................................................. 0.5 3.0
For each additional year of service (maximum
14 years total service) (10" year through the 14"

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 17 As amended 12/02/04March 16

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



.............................................................. 0.2 1.0

TOTAL. ..o 5.0

Rule 110
REMOVALS AND SUSPENSIONS

All persons in the classified civil service shall be subject to removal, suspension, demotion or
discharge from effice-er-employment by the head of the department pursuant to the department’s

progressive discipline standard operating procedures. fermisconductincompetency-orfatureto

If the grievance procedure per the local 710 collective bargaining contract does not apply or if the
grievance committee does not find the grievance meritorious, Fthe aggrieved party; shall;
however; have the right, within ten (10) days, from the time of his-removal, suspension,
demotion or discharge, or after the decision of the grievance committee, whichever is lateras-the
case-may-beto file with the commission a written demand for an investigation, whereupon the
commission shall conduct such investigation. The investigation shall be confined to the
determination of the question as to whether such removal, suspension, demotion or discharge
was made for political or religious reasons, or was made in good faith or for cause. All
investigations made by the commission pursuant to the provisions of this section shall be by
public hearing after reasonable notice to the accused of the time and place of such hearing, at
which hearing the accused shall be afforded an opportunity of appearing in person or by counsel
and presenting his/her defense.

Rule 121
APPEALS AND HEARINGS

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 18 As amended +2/02/64March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



H-suehjudgment-or-orderbe-conecurred-A party aggrieved by the determination by of the
ccommission-era-majority-thereof-the-aceused regarding the removal, suspension, demotion or
discharge of an employee may appeal therefrom to the District Ceourt of the state of Idaho, in
and for the county of Kootenai erigiral-and-an-untimitedjurisdiction-tn-civil-suits-of the-county
wherein-heresides. The District Ceourt er-original-and-untimitedjurisdiction-in-eivil-suits shall

thereupon proceed to hear and determine such appeal in a summary manner; provided, however,
that such hearing shall be confined to the determination as to whether the judgment or order of
removal, discharge, demotion or suspension made by the commission, was made for political or
religious reasons or was made in good faith for cause, and no appeal to such court shall be taken
except upon such ground or grounds.

Rule 132
GROUNDS FOR REMOVAL, DISCHARGE OR SUSPENSION

Section 1. AH-Each incumbents shall hold his-office, place, position or employment under
the provision of these rules-enby-during-geed-behavier; and any such person shall be disciplined

pursuant to the progressive discipline standard operatrnq procedures of the department and for
vrolatrons of the crtv S personnel rules ma 2t A

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 19 As amended +2/02/64March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Section 23.  The classified Civil Service shall consist of all places of employment now existing
or hereafter created in under the Fire Department of Coeur d'Alene. No appointment to any of
the places of employment in said department shall be made except under and according to law
and the rules and regulations of the Civil Service Commission. The head-ofthe-department Fire
Chief and Deputy Fire Chiefs may be appointed from within the classified Civil Service, -and if
replaced for any reason which would not warrant dismissal from the department, shall have the
opportunity to be returned to the place rank held with the City of Coeur d’Alene Fire Department
by-him-prior to the time of his appointment if there is an open position at the time of replacement
or within twelve (12) months and must meet the qualifications of the position.as-head-ef-the

Ao o

Rule13
FRANSFERS

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 20 As amended 12/02/04March 16

2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Rule 14
LAY OFF

Section 1. LAY OFF:  Whenever it becomes necessary in any department, through lack of
work or funds, or for other good causes, to reduce the force in any department or employment,
the persons working in such department who was last certified for appointment for such
employment shall be the first laid off. Seniority in appointment shall control in lay-off cases.
When reductions in work force create a need for demotions, the last person promoted shall be the
first person demoted. Demotions shall be to the previously held rank only.

Section 2. REINSTATEMENT: The names of persons laid-off in accordance with Section 1
of this rule shall be placed at the head of the eligible list and shall have precedence for
reappointment as in Rule 7, Section 3.

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 21 As amended +2/02/64March 16

2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Rule 156
REPORTS

Section 1. REPORTS FROM ELIGIBLES AND EMPLOYEES: Each eligible and
employee shall report to the CemmisstorHuman Resources Department:

@) Any change of address;-giving-street-and-number and telephone.

(b) Any failure to accept appointment or promotion with the reasons therefor.

(©) Any desire that his/her name be withheld from certification or that it be dropped
from the list.

Section 2. REPORTS FROM HEADS OF DEPARTMENTS: Eaeh-Ddepartment head shall
notify Human Resources of all appointments and resignations and consult with the Human

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 22 As amended +2/02/64March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



Resources Director on related employee matters. #nmediately-file-in-the-office-of the

—— ﬁ

CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 23 As amended 12/02/04March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



BE IT RESOLVED by the Civil Service Commission that the foregoing rules be, and the same
are hereby, adopted by the Civil Service Commission of the City of Coeur d'Alene, and

that the Secretary of the Commission certify a copy thereof to the City Council of the City of
Coeur d'Alene for its approval, the effective date of these rules to be the date of such approval by
the City Council.

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION:

Chairman
Member
Member
Attest:
Secretary
CIVIL SERVICE RULES PAGE 24 As amended 12/02/04March 16
2016

Resolution No. 16-018 Exhibit "A"



City of Coeur d’Alene
FIRE DEPARTMENT

“City of Excellence”

Staff Report
Date: March 23, 2016
From: Kenneth G. Gabriel, Fire Chief
Re: Station 4 Construction Contractor Approval

DECISION POINT:
To accept the contract for construction of Fire Station 4 by NNAC — National Native
American Construction for $1,274,500

HISTORY:

Station 4 has become a need for several years due to the increase in call volume created by
population growth as well as our City expanding in the Northwest quadrant. Our goal is to
respond to a fire emergency in less than four (4) minutes ninety (90) percent of the time.
We were seeing response times exceeding ten (10) minutes regularly. The Fire department
has identified the need for the additional coverage years ago and have consulted with the
Idaho Survey and Rating Bureau on the optimal site for the station.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS:

Construction costs have changed significantly over that last 15 years, since Station 3 was
built, the construction cost including architect fees, civil engineering, special inspections
and a contingency was a $136.00 per square foot to construct. At this time the cost alone for
just the construction of the building with the low bidder is $182.00 per square foot and
when architect fees, civil engineering, special inspections and a contingency it is at $211.00
per square foot.

The bids were as follow:

National Native American Construction $1,274,500
Contractors Northwest Inc. $1,314,500
Darden Enterprises $1,324,494
TW Clark $1,328,000
Ginno Construction $1,336,000

Meridian Construction $1,349,500



Every effort was made to reduce the cost of the station while still maintaining its function
and it’s value as a long term asset. The prominent changes were to the actual footprint of
the station where it was reduced by 1000 square feet. We used the original plans for station
#3 which had to only be adapted to the new lay-out, which was an immediate savings of
$20,000. Additional changes included the elimination of the public restrooms, elimination
of the second story storage area and a simplified more economical roof system. The
proposed plan for paying the $74,500 difference in the budget will be to open the station
later than the anticipated October 1% original date. It is unlikely the building will be
completed by that date which will give us a savings in the budgeted personnel costs. A new
target date will be in December.

PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS:

The need for a fourth fire station has been established and approved by Council. The
additional resources will not only benefit the population in their response area, it will also
enhance coverage to other areas of the City. We are often without additional response
abilities due to our large call volume. Adding the fourth station will help response City
wide.

DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION:
To approve the contract with NNAC for the sum of $1,274,500 for the construction of Fire
Station 4.



RESOLUTION NO. 16-019

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO,
AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH NATIONAL NATIVE AMERICAN
CONSTRUCTION, INC., DBA NNAC, INC., FOR THE AWARD OF THE CONTRACT FOR
THE FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT.

WHEREAS, the Fire Chief of the City of Coeur d'Alene has recommended that the City of
Coeur d'Alene enter into an agreement with National Native American Construction, Inc., dba
NNAC, Inc., pursuant to terms and conditions set forth in an agreement, a copy of which is attached
hereto as Exhibit "1" and by reference made a part hereof; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed to be in the best interests of the City of Coeur d'Alene and the
citizens thereof to enter into such agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE,

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Coeur d'Alene, that the
City enter into an agreement with National Native American Construction, Inc., dba NNAC, Inc., for
the Fire Station No. 4 Project, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit "1" and
incorporated herein by reference, with the provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City
Attorney are hereby authorized to modify said agreement to the extent the substantive provisions of
the agreement remain intact.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Clerk be, and they hereby are,
authorized to execute such agreement on behalf of the City.

DATED this 5" day of April, 2016.

Steve Widmyer, Mayor
ATTEST:

Renata McLeod, City Clerk

Resolution No. 16-019 1|Page



Motion by , Seconded by , to adopt the foregoing
resolution.

ROLL CALL:
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER EVANS Voted
COUNCIL MEMBER ENGLISH Voted

was absent. Motion

Resolution No. 16-019 2|Page



- AIA Document A101" - 2007

Init.

St‘anydard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Contractor where the basis of

payment is a Stipulated Sum

AGREEM ENT made as of the fifteenth day of March in the year Two Thousand and

Sixteen
(In words, indicate day, month and year.)

’ 'BETWEEN the Owner: L

(Name, legal status, address and other information)

" City of Coeur d’ Alene

710 Mullan Avenue
Coeur d’Alene, Idaho:83814

and the Contractor:
(Name; legal status, address and other information)

“National Native American Construction, Inc. DBA NNAGC, Inc.

3731 N Ramsey Road, Suite 105
Coeur d’ Alene, ID 83815
(208) 635-5400

“for the following Project;
(Name, location and detailed description)

: New Fire Station No. 4 for Coeur d’ Alene Fire Department
located at 6564 N Atlas Road
Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83815

The Architect: :
(Name, legal status; address and other information)

Longwell + Trapp Architects, PLLC

-~ 8382 N 'Wayne Drive, Suite 204

Hayden, Idaho 83835

' The Owner and Coritractor agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document has
added information needed for its
completion. The author may also
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions and
Deletions Report that notes -added
information as well as revisions to
the standard form text is available
from the author and should be
reviewed. A vertical line in the left
margin of this document indicates
where the author has added
necessary information and where
the author has added to or deleted
from the original AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with an
attorney is encouraged with respect
to its completion or modification.

AlA Document A201™-2007,
General Conditions of the Contract
for Construction, is adopted in this
document by reference. Do not use
with other general conditions unless
this document is modified.

AlA Document A101™ ~ 2007. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 10:45:57 on 03/31/2016 under Order No.5046972360_1 which
expires on 03/24/2017, and is not for resale. )

User Notes: (1917922158)

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "




TABLE OF ARTICLES

Init.

1~ THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT

3 DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
4 CONTRACT SUM

5 PAYMENTS

6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION
7 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION
8§ MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

10 INSURANCE AND BONDS

ARTICLE 1 THE CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of this Agreement, Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other

‘Conditions), Drawings, Specifications, Addenda issued prior to execution of this Agreement, other documents listed

in this Agreement and Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract, and

.-are as fully a part-of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement or repeated herein. The Contract represents the
- entire and-integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations or

agreements, either written or oral. An enumeration of the Contract Documents, other than a Modification, appears in
Article 9.

ART|CLE 2 THE WORK OF THIS CONTRACT
The Contractor shall fully execute the Work described in the Contract Documents, except as specifically indicated in
the Contract Documents to be the responsibility of others.

ARTICLE 3 ~ DATE OF COMMENCEMENT AND SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION
§ 3.1The date of commencement of the Work shall be the date of this Agreement unless a different date is stated

. below or provision is made for the date to be fixed in a notice to proceed issued by the Owner.
“(Insert the date of commencement if it differs from the date of this Agreement or, if applicable, state that the date

will be fixed in a notice to proceed.,)
Date to be Fixed in Notice to Proceed.

If, prior to the commencement of the Work, the Owner requires time to file mortgages and other security interests,
the Owner’s time requirement shall be as follows:

§ 3.2 The Contract Time shall be measured from the date of commencement.

§ 3:3The Contractor shall achieve Substantial Completion of the entire Work not later than () days from the

date of commencement, or as follows:

(Insert number of calendar days. Alternatively, a calendar a’ate may be used when coordinated with the date of
commencement. If appropriate, insert requirements for earlier Substantial Completion of certain portions of the
Work.)

AIA Document A101™ — 2007, Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document Is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portlon of it, may result in severe civii and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 10:45:57 on 03/31/2016 under Order N0.5046972360_1 which

expires on 03/24/2017, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1917922158)

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"

2




Portion of Work Substantial Completioh Date
ﬁnhvp Drr\uanf nnfnknv 1 5 2016

Init.

Hure-r tOUCI—1D5 2010

2 subject to adjustments of this Contract Time as provided in the Contract Documents.

~(Insert provisions, if any, for liquidated damages relating to failure to achieve Substantial Completion on time or for
bonus payments for early completion of the Work.)

N/A

ARTICLE 4  CONTRACT SUM
§ 4.1 The Owner shall pay-the Contractor the Contract Sum in current funds for the Contractor’s performance of the

© Contract. The Contract Sum shall be One Million, Two Hundred Seventy Four Thousand Five Hundred Dollars
, ($1,274,500.00), subject to additions and deductions as provided in the Contract Documents.

§ 4.2The ‘Cdn'tra'ct‘Sum is based upon the following alternates, if any, which are described in the Contract
Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner:

- (State the numbers or other identification of accepted alternates. If the bidding or proposal documents permit the

Owner to accept other alternates subsequent to the execution of this Agreement, attach a schedule of such other
alternates showing the amount for each and the date when that amount expires.)

N/A

=8 4.3 Unit prices; if any:
- (Identify and state the- unit price; state quantity limitations, if any, to which the unit price will be applicable.)

Item R Units and Limitations Price Per Unit ($0.00)
N/A

§ 4.4 Allowances included in the Contract Sum, if any:
(Identify allowance ‘and state exclusions; if any, from the allowance price.)

ltem | b Price
N/A |

ARTICLE 5 PAYMENTS

.§ 5.1PROGRESS PAYMENTS

§ 5.1.1 Based upon Applications for Payment submitted to the Architect by the Contractor and Certificates for

- Payment issued by the Architect, the Owner shall make progress payments on account of the Contract Sum to the

Contractor as provided below and elsewhere in the Contract Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The period covered by each Application for Payment shall be one calendar month ending on the last day.of

the month? or as follows:

§ 5.1.3 Provided that an Application for Payment is received by the Architect not later than the first day of a month,
the Owner shall make payment of the certified amount to the Contractor not later than the thirty day of the same
month. If an Application for Payment is received by the Architect after the application date fixed above, payment
shall be made by the Owner not later than thirty (30) days after the Architect receives the Application for Payment.
(Federal,-state or local laws may require payment within a certain period of time.)

§ 5.1.4 Each Application for Payment shall be based on the most recent schedule of values submitted by the
Contractor in accordance with the Contract Documents. The schedule of values shall allocate the entire Contract
Sum among the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be prepared in such form and supported

AlA Document A101™ = 2007. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This A!A® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 10:45:57 on 03/31/2016 under Order No.5046972360_1 which
expires on 03/24/2017, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1917922158)

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"

3




by such data to substantiate its accuracy as the Architect may require. This schedule, unless objected to by the
Architect, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Contractor’s Applications for Payment.

Init.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019

§-5-1:5-Applications-for-Payment-shall-show-the-percentage-of completion-of each-portion-of- the-Work-as-of the-end
of the period covered by the Application for Payment.

§ 5.1.6 Subject to other provisions of the Contract Documents, the amount of each progress payment shall be
computed as follows:
1 Take that portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to completed Work as determined by
multiplying the percentage completion of each portion of the Work by the share of the Contract Sum
allocated to that portion of the Work in the schedule of values, less retainage of five percent (5%).
Pending final determination of cost to the Owner of changes in the Work, amounts not in dispute
‘shall be included as provided in Section 7.3.9 of AIA Document A201™-2007, General Conditions
of the Contract for Construction;
.2° - Add that portion of the Contract Sum properly allocable to materials and equipment delivered and
, suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the completed construction (or, if approved
_ in advance by the Owner, suitably stored off the site at a location agreed upon in writing), less
retainage of five percent (5%);
3 Subtract the-aggregate of previous payments made by the Owner; and
4 Subtract amounts, if any, for which the Architect has withheld or nullified a Certificate for Payment
Cooas provided in Section 9.5 of ATA Document A201-2007.

§ 5617 The progress payment amount determined in accordance with Section 5.1.6 shall be further modified under
the followmg circumstances:
A Add, upon Substantial Completion of the Work, a sum sufficient to increase the total payments to the
“full amount of the Contract Sum, less such amounts as the Architect shall determine for incomplete
Work, retainage applicable to such work and unsettled claims; and
(Section 9.8.5 of AIA Document A201-2007 requires release of applicable retainage upon
Substantial Completion of Work with consent of surety, if any.)
2./ Add, if final completion of the Work is thereafter materially delayed through no fault of the
Contractor, any additional amounts payable in accordance with Section 9.10.3 of AIA Document
A20 1—2007. '

§ 5.1.8 Reduction or limitation of retainage, if any, shall be as follows:

(If it is intended, prior to Substantial Completion of the entire Work, to veduce or limit the retainage resulting from
the percentages inserted in Sections 5.1.6.1 and 5.1.6.2 above, and this is not explained elsewhere in the Contract
Documents, insert here provisions for such reduction or limitation.)

. N/A

§ 5.1.9 Except with the Owner’s prior approval, the Contractor shall not make advance payments to suppliers for
materials or equipment which have not been delivered and stored at the site.

- § 5.2FINAL PAYMENT
*-§ 5.2.1 Final payment, constituting the entire unpaid balance of the Contract Sum, shall be made by the Owner to the

Contractor when :
1 “the Contractor has fully performed the Contract except for the Contractor’s responsibility to correct
Work as provided in Section 12.2.2 of AIA Document A201-2007, and to satisfy other requirements,
if any, which extend beyond final payment; and
.2 . afinal Certificate for Payment has been issued by the Architect.

§ 5.2.2 The Owner’s final payment to the Contractor shall be made no later than 30 days after the issuance of the
Architect’s final Certificate for Payment, or as follows:

AlA Document A101™ — 2007. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document Is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possiblé under the law. This document was produced by AIA software at 10:45:57 on 03/31/2016 under Order No.5046972360_1 which

expires on 03/24/2017, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1917922158)

EXHIBIT "1"

4




-+thwaﬂ1%app01nt -below-another-individual,not-a-party-to-this-Agreement;-to-serve-as-Initial Decision-Maker-

Init.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019

ARTICLE 6 DISPUTE RESOLUTION
§ 6.1INITIAL DECISION MAKER
The Architect will serve as Initial Decision Maker pursuant to Section 15.2 of AIA Document A201-2007, unless

(If the parties mutually agree, insert the name, address and other contact information of the Initial Decision Maker,

if other than the Architect.)

§ 6.2 BINDING DISPUTE RESOLUTION
For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Section 15.3 of AIA Document A201-2007, the
method of binding dispute resolution shall be as follows:

. (Check the- appropriate box. If the Owner and Contractor do not select a method of binding dispute resolution
“below, or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, Claims
will be resolved by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.)

[ ] ‘v Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4 of AIA Document A201-2007
N X] Li'tigati‘on’in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ ]  Other (Specijy)

ARTICLE 7 TERMINATION -OR SUSPENSION
§ 7.1 The Contract may be termmated by the Owner or the Contractor as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document
A201-2007.

§ 7.2 The Work may be suspended by the Owner as provided in Article 14 of AIA Document A201-2007.

ARTICLE 8 MISCELLANEQUS PROVISIONS

§ 8.1 Where reference is. made in this Agreement to a provision of AIA Document A201-2007 or another Contract
Document, the reference refers to that provision as amended or supplemented by other provisions of the Contract
Documents.

§ 8.2 Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated
below, or in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to tlme at the place where the Project is
located.

(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

12 % per Annum

§ 8.3 The Owner’s representative:
(Name, address and other. information)

Deputy Chief Jim Washko, Coeur d’Alene Fire Department

- 310 Foster Avenue

Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814

§ 8.4 The Contractor’s representative:
(Name, address and other information)

National Native American Construction, Inc. (DBA NNAC, Inc.)

3731 N Ramsey Road, Suite 105
Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83815

(Paragraphs deleted)

AlA Document A101™ — 2007. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document Is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe clvil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 10:45:57 on 03/31/2016 under Order No.5046972360_1 which

expires on 03/24/2017, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1917922158)

EXHIBIT "1"



ARTICLE 9 ENUMERATION OF CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

§ 9.1 The Contract Documents, except for Modifications issued after execution of this Agreement, are enumerated

in the sections below.

Init.

§ 9.1.1 The Agreement is this executed AIA Document A101-2007, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner

and Contractor.

‘§ 9.1.2 The General Conditions are AIA Document A201-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for
Construction.

' § 9.1.3 The Supplementary and other Conditions of the Contract:

Document = = Title Date Pages
See attached Table of

Conterits from Project

Manual. .- '

§ 9.1;4 The Speciﬁ@ations: ,
(Either list the Specifications here or refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.)
‘See attached Table of Contents from Project Manual
Section o Title Date Pages
§ 9.1.5 The Drawings:
(Either list the Drawings here oF refer to an exhibit attached to this Agreement.)

- See attached Sheet Index

Number Title Date

'§ 9.1.6 The Addenda, if any:

Number v Date Pages
Addenda No. 1 February 25, 2016 25
AddendaNo.2 February 29, 2016 14

Portions of Addenda relating to bidding requirements are not part of the Contract Documents unless the bidding
requirements are also enumerated in this Article 9.

§ 9.1.7 Additional documents, if any, forming part of the Contract Documents:

A AIA Document E201™-2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed by the parties, or the
~following:

.2 Other documents, if any, listed below:

(List here any additional documents that are intended to form part of the Contract Documents. AIA
- Document A201-2007 provides that bidding requirements such as advertisement or invitation to bid,

Instructions to Bidders, sample forms and the Contractor’s bid are not part of the Contract

o Documents unless enumerated in this Agreement. They should be listed here only if intended to be

part of the Contract Documents.)

Bid Proposal Dated March 1, 2016

AIA Document A101™ = 2007. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and Internationat Treatles. Unauthorized
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may resuit in severe civil and criminal penaities, and will be prosecuted to
the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 10:45:57 on 03/31/2016 under Order No.5046972360_1 which

expires on 03/24/2017, and is not for resale.

User Notes: (1917922158)

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"

6




ARTICLE 10 INSURANCE AND BONDS
The Contractor shall purchase and maintain insurance and provide bonds as set forth in Article 11 of AIA Document

A201-2007.
————————————{State-bonding-requirements—if-any-and-limits-of-liability for-insurancerequired-in-Avtiele-1-of AZA-Document
A201-2007.)
* Type of insurance or hond Limit of liahility or bond amount ($0.00)

1. Performance Labor and Payment Bond  Equal to 100% of Contract Sum
2. As required in Section 008000

Supplementary Conditions, Article 11 in
Project Manual

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signature) .~ "~ CONTRACTOR (Signature)
(Printed name and title) . (Printed name and title)
. AlA Document A101™ — 2007. Copyright © 1915, 1918, 1925, 1937, 1951, 1958, 1961, 1963, 1967, 1974, 1977, 1987, 1991, 1997 and 2007 by The American
Init. Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AIA® Document Is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treatles. Unauthorized 7
reproduction or distribution of this AIA® Document, or any portion of it, may result In severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to
I} the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 10:45:57 on 03/31/2016 under Order No.5046972360_1 which
expires on 03/24/2017, and is not for resale.
User Notes:

(1917922158)
RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"




‘ FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO

W aTalateYal INAATATION-TO

VUVLU veaeinnnaee AIRVITATIUNTO DIU A T Y L T T Y P Y T R T Y P YV L TP T T T T T T TP P PO T PP TT PITN :

012600............ CONTRACT MODIFICATION PROCEDURES .............. eaes sersererensarsseins s a s aeat e b st snsaran 2
012900............ PAYMENT PROCEDURES w creorenensssasins crrssravs e s s e aesesas s srertas 4
013100............ PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND COORDINATION O 8
013200............ CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS DOCUMENTATION.........coeeuecuneeeersrenss seneee remrnvererrasnisrsrenensstnsessesnarsases 8
013300............ SUBMITTAL PROCEDURES .....ccvucesieesiscssmsmsessssessenssssssssssssssssssssssis sssssssessssssssossssssssessassssssesesssases . 9
014000............ QUALITY REQUIREMENTS ....u.cuieurissinscsssssmessrsssssssasssssssssassssssssssesss sessessesesssssnsscssessssassssssssssesnessensens 8
014200............ REFERENCES freesasnres ssessieaissasiLI e e s e RS R e e re b b rannen 11
015000............ TEMPORARY FACILITIES AND CONTROLS ....covrmumernesrusensasssssssssssess sssessssssssmssssssessssssssessesnsssensossesnne 6

PRODUCT REQUIREMENTS ......cccoutmiierisscsncessnsensesnmsssessesssassssssssssssss sossane 4
EXECUTION.......c ettt ssssisssssssssssssssissssesssassasssssssrsssesasssssssniss sessbsssssessasssressssssnsastsssssses 8
CONSTRUCTION WASTE MANAGEMENT AND DISPOSAL ............................................................... 3
CLOSEQUT PROCEDURES.......cecsiuuisessscsnsseessessessssssssesmesssassssssssasss sssssssssssssssssessssssssossaseresnsssasassssans 5
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE DATA .....cccooveremnenne - 7
PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS . Htsesenreaestneniann shssessiasasas st sR e asR e s Rne R R e SR SRS S nann 4
DEMONSTRATION AND TRAINING.......ccouescusinsmsnseessennsessssassestaessiases seossesssssesssessossosssssesssssnssosssssssesees 5

DIVISION 2 - SITE CONSTRUCTION

DIVISION 3 - CONCRETE

033000............ CAST-IN-PLACE CONCRETE ....ocvurmuiuscssssensmrassssarsasssssssssessensssssssssass ssssssssssesssssssssasssssssssssressensssensssees 13

033510............ POLISHED CONCRETE FINISH........cccooretnunimmminneesaranrsasesssenscssssssssseres sesse . -7

DIVISION 4 - MASONRY

042113.......c.... BRICK MASONRY Heestebiutire it et a L ab e s as B e R R RIRARAORIS S1ELRSRSerRe e e sesaase e san st sanaeTanaenann 13

DIVISION 5 - METALS

055000............ METAL FABRICATIONS ......ccovrerireinsississssnessissessssnsassassssssessssssassssass sssssssssssssssssrssssssssssesssssnsansesssmases 8

DIVISION 6 - WOOD AND PLASTICS

061000............ ROUGH CARPENTRY y - 10

061600............ SHEATHING.........ciitinniecrssiscessssnssssesssssesssssensssssssasassssssssessasssssssassane sesees SR, 5 -

061753............ SHOP-FABRICATED WOOD TRUSSES ........ccoseseummmernsessesremssnnssssses sesssssssssssmsseessssseesessesssasans .. 6

061800............ GLUED-LAMINATED CONSTRUCTION 4

062013............ EXTERIOR FINISH CARPENTRY ...cccuiiuiuscrserssessnsssesssssssssensessansassns sssssesossssssssosseseasessesessessnens 5

064023............ INTERIOR ARCHITECTURAL WOODWORK .....cveeurtrrranressescsmessessssas ssssiessrssesssssssessrssenssssssssenesnssseesss 9
2

066400............ PLASTIC PANELING .....cvueuuetnninsessnisssesiscmsstsssasesscnsssssssssssssassssssesnsans ssssesssssssssasssiessssessessesstsssassessornane

DIVISION 7 - THERMAL AND MOISTURE PROTECTION
BITUMINOUS DAMPPROOFING.......ccvevereriaiverseensassossssssesssnsasensensesess stsssossessssssssossossesemssosssosssesessssnses 3

THERMAL INSULATION... . . 5
<0 ASPHALT SHINGLES .......cocverernieneinensesresssnasasssesssssssassessessssssesesaseres sseos ; . 8
--SIDING terssriesiessesnsansasesntrass senns 3
g

4

6

SHEET METAL FLASHING AND TRIM.......cccececrmruenenee beresssesenentsnensnsnnsnsants
PENETRATION FIRESTOPPING .....cocusessiucmsiearensesssssesesessssasensessossens sorsssssossssssassssssssesessssssseennsnsasssns
JOINT SEALANTS ..cccrvrsirrtisenscscssmssessssssssssssssassasessensssssssssesensessssase sessssssssssssssssssssssstosssssssnsnsssesssmens

TOC -1

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 " EXHIBIT "1"




FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075"

COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO
DIVISION 8 - DOORS AND WINDOWS

081113...ccne HOLLOW METAL DOORS AND FRAMES.......c.ovvererranens: e e e SO 9
081416............FLUSH WOOD DOORS......cccecveervemrenns S R R SRR s e e e St 5
083213............ SLIDING ALUMINUM-FRAMED GLASS DOORS......ccocvinritininiinsines sonesbiininnsssssinsensnsd resen 4
083613.........0.0 SECTIONAL DOORS .....cuiuiuiesirintaesesssseseut st seestsstssussesessstsssssesssasusessasass sresssosassnsssssasssssssssstsasssassnsnsshaness 10
085113............ ALUMINUM WINDOWS ..ottt i snssestsseshs stssssssessessessesesencrsseseresessannsannsnsss 9
087100............ DOOR HARDWARE ......cotrniriiiristitieirestssisssesstast st ssestsesststsessns stussbresssescssentsesssesensesasasansnsassenes 14
088000............ GLAZING ..ottt st e ss e s s sasses s s esenss e s se e sesassnans suesessssssrenns s 8
089000............ LOUVERS AND VENTS ....ccoiiriiiimiiiniistisiieisiesisssiisssstessssstseas stisesessnssssensstnesesssssessessansansesesnns 5
DIVISION 9 - FINISHES

092900............ GYPSUM BOARD .....oieirereetteni ittt em et ses s e se e e ns ssaessasssssenssenssessesesssssenssnsansanassane 7
093000............ TILING o s s SebsbeRes e r s bR et e b e e v e e e vean 9
095113....ccceuee ACOUSTICAL PANEL CEILINGS ..ottt it sttt dastssesssiesesssesessadesasaesone 6
096513............ RESILIENT BASE AND ACCESSORIES .......coimicrrrrremirencnnreniresereres sesessmrenssesesssssssisssisosessssssassensssenss 4
099113............ EXTERIOR PAINTING ...ttt sesssnsesesesenss sesessssssmsssssensassans e 6
099123............ INTERIOR PAINTING. ..ottt sttt asasans srusessrsss st sesisssbessss st s sssaasseness 7
DIVISION 10 - SPECIALTIES

101400............ SIGNAGE ........cociinimniecesiiniennns e eeiitreret e e bR ae e SEbedeeb e e s h e b s s e e s anas 8
101426............ POST AND PANEL/PYLON SIGNAGE ......coontiieerisiriiniiiniiirisiinins siisessineesmeenseseiensescstsssssnsssnsssanes 4
102113............ TOILET COMPARTMENTS....ccvitiniiiisiiisisisiminisisssssssssestrs s sssesesssssssssssenssesssrstasssssesnessnsetens 4
102600............ WALL AND DOOR PROTECTION ....cuiiiriiiiricmrimsmiin e smssnsenes arsasstossssssssesssssssasssesesssssaannranmnens 4
102800............ TOILET, BATH, AND LAUNDRY ACCESSORIES..........ccceneneens ererians e st snn et es 3
104413............ FIRE EXTINGUISHER CABINETS e o

104416............ FIRE EXTINGUISHERS .......coieeearinecrercerenrerenmmesaessrsssseesensens S RSN
107500............ FLAGPOLES ..ottt snasesssmssssssnssssssssens suessssssisesesssnissssstsssssestsseasannns v
SCHEDULES -

........................ ABBREVIATIONS .......coiiiiitiiitiiisnnnsssssiisssisssissesssssssssesssess stiesescmasssesssensssesssssencessessrsssassasss &
........................ MATERIALS & FINISHES .....otvveiiimirneieenmiiiseniiecsessessssesssnsss ssssssssmsssessesssnssssssssssssssssessesevnnss |
........................ ROOM FINISH SCHEDULES .......coviriirtinmmissimiessessesssisiies sstssosssasssssssssissssssssssssssnssssssseseer 2
........................ DOOR SCHEDULE ...ttt nsssss st ssssstsnsbeses st sesesessssesssesesessesinsamsssessssnesssnses 2
........................ DOOR TYPES ....iiticiirrnrrrererneec e sissssnssissssss s sssesssassssstsasorsassistese ssvsssssssesssssssnsesssenssesssrssssnsessrroess |
........................ FRAME TYPES ......ooiitrircieisnniisissisns s eseassssass s sessssesesssns sesssssssesssssssssssssenssesssessesaansaneenass |
........................ WINDOW TYPES ...ttt ettt sesessesssaessssesssistansioss soseesssrsassssssnssssssssssrissssssssssssessnnss |
BOOK 2

DIVISION 21 - FIRE SUPPRESSION

210000............ FIRE PROTECTION ..ottt ssrssesistssssseststssssiss ssissssssssentmsssnsssostststssstsnasaenseasess 5
210517............ SLEEVES AND SLEEVE SEALS FOR FIRE'SUPPRESSION PIPING. .....cooorecirmicmcimieressrseseesens 3
210518............ ESCUTCHEONS FOR FIRE-SUPPRESSION PIPING ......ccoititriicsies oermrrresccnsnsisescnsesenesmsessesssssnsssens 2
210553............ IDENTIFICATION FOR FIRE-SUPPRESSION PIPING AND EQUIPMENT.....cceoeerreeensinnersnesensinrenenens 4
DIVISION 22 - PLUMBING

220517............ SLEEVES AND SLEEVE SEALS FOR PLUMBING PIPING .....c..ccvcvint ceererrecerneseserensnsesesesenssesesessassees 2
220518............ ESCUTCHEONS FOR PLUMBING PIPING.......ccovtsieenimeiiinsssrenscsnssens ssesssssssesesesssens e e 2
220519............ METERS AND GAGES FOR PLUMBING PIPING. ........ccoiiirrrrtrccrrnens rerrseressssesesassmsssesessesesessasseneesnans 3
220523............ GENERAL-DUTY VALVES FOR PLUMBING PIPING .......ccccrrercieirers srereracereresansesesesesessisessesasssenessans 4
220529............HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR PLUMBING PIPING AND EQUIPMENT......ccccoeorrmeeeerercerrrerrereseras 6
220553............ IDENTIFICATION FOR PLUMBING PIPING AND EQUIPMENT ....coet tieniiisrcecnrecceencessenenersannenansennns 3
220719............ PLUMBING PIPING INSULATION ........ S 10
221116............ DOMESTIC WATER PIPING......ctiiiiitrmiitsnrcie s ssssnsasses sstsessesssssmsesenmsssssstssesssssssssmmenenes 7
221119.......... DOMESTIC WATER PIPING SPECIALTIES .....ccviviiiiseininiaessiresiniss sreemasscsasssssessrsesssenssesesssassassanens 5
221316............ SANITARY WASTE AND VENT PIPING.......ccciirnerineiniiniessisesieeens srssrsescessmsessssssssssnmssssssssssnsssensens 7
221319............ SANITARY WASTE PIPING SPECIALTIES ..ottt seemseresseressssesenssesscssessssssaessanns 4
221513, GERNERAL-SERVICE COMPRESSED-AIR PIPING .....cccviitiiereriiriens rrvsrcereersesssersersesssssssrsessssssneseeans 6
223300............ ELECTRIC, DOMESTIC-WATER HEATRES .....ccoiiiiitiiniiinitiiesnennens serevresesessssessssssesssssessessssassnsosnnes 4
223400............ FUEL-FIRED, DOMESTIC-WATER HEATERS.....ciciiiitiiiirreerrens serrerenmeseensesssssessseesssssnsasssnessnnes 4
224100............ RESIDENTIAL PLUMBING FIXTURES.......oociiiiiiinirninieseseisisesses sisesssenesssmssserssmsenssressasssssmnsmassensns 5

TOC -2

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 : EXHIBIT "1"




FIRE STATION NO. 4 . PROJECT NO. 2014-075

COEUR D'ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO
224213.13....... COMMERCIAL WATER CLOSETS .....cucunriniisneeresssssssssnmssssssessmssssions ssisessssssssssesssssssssssssssssssssessssses 4
224213.16....... COMMERCIAL URINALS ..ottt e resnrsssessess srsassssesssssssessesssessansasanssesssressesns 4
224216.13....... COMMERCIAL LAVATORIES ....cntiiiiiicnitiiiiisi i eestsas cesaessesssssssassesssessssesesssessssassensssens 5
224216.16....... COMMERGCIAL SINIS.....cooiiiiiiiiii ittt sesesteaes ssssebsssssssssesseseseatesesssssassssessarasnnes 4
224223 COMMER AL SH OW B R S o i s s i svnvenenve i i i e e en i 3
224500............ EMERGANCY PLUMBING FIXTURES .....cociiiiirieienreenssenerienniens sesstsmsssesssssesssssssnssssssssssnnssrassesees 4
224716............ PRESSURE WATER COOLERS ....c..ctiiiuetnenierinisesassesessssssssiosnsesies strssssssessessesssssssssemsesssssssssassssesne 3
DIVISION 23 ~ HEATING VENTILATING AND AIR CONDITIONING :
230513............ COMMON MOTOR REQUIREMENTS FOR HVAC EQUIPMENT ........ voceneteeniscseserereressssiossessesssssssenns 2
2305653............ IDENTIFCATION FOR HVAC PIPING AND EQUIPMENT......ccoceernrars comrrrenesisiressssssessssessssesssssssssenees 2
230593............ TESTING, ADJUSTING, AND BALANCING FOR HVAC ......ccvvrimiins cnnnessissmsssssssssasinsesssssssssssessesens 9
230713...cuuee. DUCT IINSULATION ..ottt esiosss e iesssrssesssasesess ststsssssssssesessssessssssesasesssssassrssnatons 7
2311238............ FACILITY NATURAL-GAS PIPING ......ccviuriimminniiiiniiensiesesnieseens sesssniessssesesesssssenssssessssssssssessssasns 10
232300............ REFRIGERANT PIPING ...ttt eseasesestsese sersssstsesssssesssasssstestarssssesstessassenees 5
233113...cenne. METAL DUCTS .ottt st s cs st seassssnssssesesens srsssborstsssessesssnsensenssessanssssesssesanens 11
233300............ AIR DUCT ACCESSORIES........coicerimiimininisiiniiiisiissesistssssermasssns snssssssssssssssssssmssesisessssesassssssses 4
233423............ HVAC POWER VENTILATORS ...ccoiviitiitisistreresccesess e resassnsssesssnnes sstsssesssssesssssssentsssersssssssnasessssses 6
233713........... DIFFUSERS, REGISTERS, AND GRILLES .........ccouierrneererninnnes connsiessesenssesesesess P 3
233723.....cnu. HVAC GRAVITY VENTILATORS .....cccviviitrrisinsississiiissiississesssessaseseses eesvssessiossssessststssssessssssssesnsnsessasas 3
233813............ COMMERCIAL-KITCHEN HOODS ......ccciimiinisinirisiisesiincnsineecsmmsesesess servessesssssssssssssssssssseressesssssosssssens 6
234100............ PARTICULATE AIR FILTRATION ..ottt seemseseseses susssrsssssnssssstsssssssssestesssssasssnsensasas 2
235400.......... WFURNACES......c s sesesssessesesseasssssanstos sessssssssssssmasssssasssssssstssnsessosseserares 7
238239.19.......WALL AND CEILING UNIT HEATERS....ccecttnmmernremreereassesssssoseresssssssnes sressssesssesssssassssssssssserssersessssssssasse 2
DIVISION 26 - ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS
260010............ GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS......ccvireveres sirvenenircsnsessresssssssssersasessssssasassens 8
260500............ COMMON WORK RESULTS FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS.....ccecornres srurererereseresesesssssasrsssessarersssansnsens 4
260519............ ELECTRICAL POWER CONDUCTORS AND CABLES..........cccnirerenes sectvessssessssssssssssessessssssensrssssnsseres 5
260526............ GROUNDING AND BONDING FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS .....cceves corrnenrirecssessenssensesesssssssessessessene 4
260529............ HANGERS AND SUPPORTS FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS .......ccceeet wvimnnsiisvessesessssessesssssasssessseseseens 5
260533............ RACEWAY AND BOXES FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS .......cccniiiree srevriererseesesmsassessssessssssesssssassees 11
260653............ IDENTIFICATION FOR ELECTRICAL SYSTEMS ......ooiiririeecernreriines sressssnsresiessesssesssssssesssssssssnsssesnens 5
260923............ AUTOMATIC LIGHTING CONTROL DEVICES ....ciciereeeeneerecenersrinies senissssssesesesssssssessssssssssessessasarssees 6
262416............ PANELBOARDS.......ccimiianiiiiisiitiisssnsssissis st sesesessssssssssssssses srsesssssesssmsssssesesssnsssarssessesssssessees 8
262726............ WIRING DEVICES .....ciiiisiiiiississssisisssssesmsassseesessssreenssnssasssssases sens Creessaneneeses e e e 7
262813............ FUSES ...t s s s bt sa s st sas st st stsen ssesstsssssssstesanssssetnrarstarasetensrssases 3
262816............ ENCLOSED SWITCHES .....ccoceiiiinitiistissniissisisssesesssesssssesessss ssssstsessssssssssesssssssssssssesssssssesssasss 4
262913............ MOTOR CONTROL.......cciiiriisisinirnmnisstenssnssesissssisssmsersasseasersesesesss tsesstsessssssesssestasstsssssssessesassonssness 5
265100............ INTERIOR LIGHTING. ...ttt insnssiinissssissssssestonn e sssssesesass ssivesssssssmssssssssssessssssessesestossssons 6
265600............ EXTERIOR LIGHTING ....coiiiiimniiicsmiiisentsiiisssesesiessesesisssssssssarsinss sesssssstesssssssessessasnsssesssssssessenssssres 5
DIVISION 27 - COMMUNICATION
270010............ GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR COMMUNICATIONS ........cooiieeeeirerees crvesinsssssmessssssnssrsesssserssssssesene 4
DIVISION 28 - LIFE SAFETY
280010............ GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ELECTRONIC SAFETY AND SECURITY ......cccocereeereeeesrsrsncsersnsssonsenns 7
283111.......uue. FIRE ALARM SYSTEM ...coiiiimimiicinsesiesiissinissiissesesssessssasssssrsnise stvssssssstssessasssstsnsnssssssssesssssssnssenes 12
DIVISION 31 - EARTHWORK
311000............ SITE CLEARING .......ooiiieirncinisinsssisisestsseisissass st ssesessssasensosssesssessass setsssssssssssesssessassssssstnrassnssssssessses 4
312000............ EARTH MOVING ...ttt sssssssesessssesscasssestes sorsetosssssssrsssesssssssssssssssssssstssessons 10
........................ SOILE REPORT ...ttt sisissisisssastsssessisssssesesessanas sesmssssssessessssssserssssesssssssassessesassess 21
DIVISION 32 - EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS
321216............ ASPHALT PAVING ......civirrteiitiiinnniestesiiisisisssssissesseassmenresas siasssssssstossestressssssssesesssssssssossens 6
321313..ceeenee CONCRETE PAVING ..ottt sesesssseeesessesssssssiss ssetsssssessassssssesssnsasssestssssssesssssnenes 11
321373 CONCRETE PAVING JOINT SEALANTS .....cciininiimniisisiisesssinermerses sersessesessssesersosorsssssssssssssssssssssenes 4
323113...ceeeee CHAIN LINK FENCES AND GATES ....c.covmniiniinisiscinsiiscescsseseasses sssssssssessasrsssesssssssasasssssassssseseasnes 6
323123............ EXTRUDED POLYVINYL CHLORIDE (PVC) FENCING ......cceceeeenieres sersrresessenssssssesssessesssssssssssessssnsse 2
END OF TABLE OF CONTENTS
TOC -3

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"




SHEET INDEX

Tlo TITLE, INDEX, CODE SUMMARY, MATERIALS ¢ STMBOLS LEGEND, GENERAL.
NOTES, VICINITY MAP

T CODE ANALYSIS, CODE ANALYSIS PLAN, LEGENDS, PLUMBING FIXTURE
ANALYSIS, OCCUPANT LOAD DIAGRAM, OCCUPANT LOAD CALCULATION

ClVIL.

RESOLUTION NO. 16-01

al WATER, SENER, GRADING ¢ DRAINAGE PLAN

LANDSC APE

Ll LANDSCAPE PLAN

IR IRRIGATION PLAN

ARCHITECTURAL

Al SITE PLAN, SITE PLAN KEYED NOTES, SITE DETAILS

Al2 SITE DETAILS

A2l FLOOR PLAN, GENERAL NOTES, KEYED FLOOR PLAN NOTES

A22 ENLARGED FLOOR PLAN, CONTROL. JOINT DIAGRAM, DETAILS
© A3l EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - WEST, SOUTH, DETAILS

AS2 EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS - EAST, NORTH, DETAILS

A4l BUILDING SECTIONS AA, BB, DETAILS

A5 WALL SECTIONS A, B & C, DETAILS

A52 WALL SECTIONS D, E ¢ F
AS3 WALL SECTIONS 6, H ¢ J

Aol REFLECTED CEILING PLAN, CEILING PLAN KEYED NOTES, CEILING DETAILS
Al ROOF PLAN, ROOF DETAILS
AB| INTERIOR ELEVATIONS, DETAILS

AB2 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS, DETAILS

AB3 INTERIOR ELEVATIONS, DETAIL

ABA  CASEWORK DETAILS, FLOOR DETAILS, TYPICAL MOUNTING HEIGHTS
Adl POOR DETAILS

Ad2 WINDONW DETAILS, MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS

Alol WALL TYPES

STRUCTURAL

sl GENERAL NOTES LESEND AND ABBREVIATIONS
sl2 GENERAL NOTES

513 GENERAL NOTES

52 FOUNDATION PLAN

$22  LOW ROOF FRAMING PLAN
523  HIGH ROOF FRAMING PLAN
$30  FOUNDATION DETAILS

540  FOUNDATION DETAILS

850  FRAMINS DETAILS

51 FRAMING DETAILS

$52  FRAMING DETAILS

MECHANIC AL

Mo GENERAL NOTES, ABBREVIATIONS ¢ SYMBOLS
M} SCHEDULES
M2 SCHEDULES

. M20 FOUNDATION PLAN - PLUMBING

M2 FLOOR PLAN - PLUMBING
M3l FLOOR PLAN -~ HVAC
M4l DETAILS

M42 DETAILS - HVAC

ELECTRICAL

EO| SYMBOLS SCHEDULES ¢ ABBREVIATIONS

ELI SITE PLAN AND POLE BASE

E24 LIGHTING PLAN

E3l POWER ¢ SIGNAL PLAN

E4l ONE-LINE DIASRAM FEEDER SCHEDULES & PANELS

E4.2 SCHEMATICS AND DETAILS

EXHIBIT "1"




FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’'ALENE, IDAHO

SECTION 008000 - SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS

These-Supplementary-Conditions-form-a-part-of-and-are-incorporated-in-the-contract for-construction-and-modify;
delete, add and replace provisions of the “General Conditions of the Contract for Construction, “AlA Document A201-
2007.” Provisions not altered remain in effect. All terms defined elsewhere in the Contract Documents shall have the
same meaning here, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise.

Article 1 - GENERAL PROVISIONS
1.2. Correlation and Intent of the Contract Documents.
Add the following to the last sentence of Pafagraph 1.2.2:

and shall not operate to make the Architect an arbiter to establish subcontract limits between Contractor and
Subcontractor.

Add the following Clause 1.2.3.1 to 1.2.3:

1.2.3.1 Conflicts in the Construction Documents shall be brought to the attention of the Architect. In such instances,
the following is the order of authority of the documents, the first taking highest precedence:

Agreement (Owner-Contractor)

Addenda

National, State and local codes or ordinances.

Other Conditions.

Supplementary Conditions

General Conditions

*Specifications (Division 1 through 33). Specifications shall govern over drawings and general notes insofar
as quality of materials, thickness or gauge of materials, finish of materials, composition of materials and
quality of workmanship.

*Details

9. *Drawings. (Figure dimensions on drawings shall govern over nominal dimensions and over drawings
without figured dimensions. Largest scale drawing covering any portion of the work shall govern over small-
scale drawings of same portion of work, except as noted herein for figured dimensions). Actual physical
dimensions of specified stock items shall govern over dimensions shown on drawings on work to receive
such stock items. Custom items or modified stock items shall be fabricated to dimensions shown on
drawings or to fit into other dimensioned work.

Noobohb=

*Note: Should conflict occur in or between Drawings, Details, and Specifications, Contractor shall be
deemed to have estimated on more expensive way of doing work unless he has asked for or obtained a
written decision 48 hours before submission of bids as to which method or materials will be required. If
Work is shown on the drawings but not in the specifications or Work is specified or described in the
specifications but not shown specifically on the drawings, the Work is to be provided at no additional costs
with specifications or clarification drawings to be issued.

Add the following Subparagraphs 1.2.4 through 1.2.6 to 1.2: k

1.2.4  Conditions of the Contract shall be read by all prime contractors and by each subcontractor or sub-
subcontractor and shall be considered a part of each section of the Technical Specifications. Provisions of Contract
Documents are binding on the contractors, subcontractors and sub-subcontractors for all work shown or indicated on
the original Contractor Documents plus any additional work authorized by change order, interpretation or field orders.

1.2.,5  The Contractor shall notify the Architect of any condition he finds where, in his judgment, it will be desirable
to modify the requirements to produce the best results. If the Contractor fails to make such request, he is deemed to
have accepted the specified and/or detailed method of installation as being adequate to produce first class,
satisfactory work. Manufacturer's equipment specifications are based on models and/or construction and installation
methods prevailing at the date of invitation and/or advertisement. Manufacturer's model and/or construction changes
and other variations from the items specified shall be furnished and installed at no additional cost to Owner.

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 008000 - 1

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 : EXHIBIT "1"



FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO

1.2.6  Requests by the Contractor for written interpretations and/or detail drawings shall be made to the Architect
in a timely manner such as will allow ample time for their preparation and delivery without causing delays in work.
Failure of the Contractor to request needed clarifications and/or his proceeding with affected work prior to receiving
same shall indicate his acceptance of any and all costs and/or delays required on account of necessary conditions.

Article 3 - CONTRACTOR

3.3 Supervision and Construction Procedures

Add the following Subparagraphs 3.3.4 to 3.3:

All grades, levels, bench marks, locations and corners shall be correctly established by the Contractor.

3.4, Labor and Materials

35 Warranty

Add the following sentence to the end of Subparagraph 3.5:

The Contractor shall maintain such warranty for a period of ONE (1) year from the date of Substantial Completion of
the project notwithstanding more extensive warranty requirements specified for certain elements and products used
in the work in which case the longer warranty requirement shall apply.

3.6 Taxes

Add the following Subparagraph 3.6.1:

3.6.1  The Contractor in consideration of securing the business of erecting or constructing public works in this sate,
and recognizing that the business in which he is engaged is of a transitory character, and that in the pursuit thereof,
his property used therein may be without the State when taxes, excises or license fees to which he is liable become
payable, agrees:

A To pay promptly when due all taxes (other than on real property), excises and license fees due to
the State, its subdivisions, and during the term of this contract, whether or not the same shall be
payable at the end of such term;

2 That if said taxes, excises, and license fees are not payable at the end of said term, but liability for
the payment thereof exists even though the same constitute liens upon his property, to secure the
same to the satisfaction of the respective officers charged with the collection thereof; and .

3 That, in the event of his default in the payment or securing of such taxes, excises, and license fees,
to consent that the department, officer, board, or taxing unit entering into this contract may withhold
from any payment due him hereunder the estimated amount of such accrued and accruing taxes,
excises, and license fees for the benefit of all taxing units to which said contractor is liable.

3.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws

Delete Subparagraph 3.7.1 and substitute the following:

3.7.1  The Owner has paid for the plan review, building permit and other fees normally required by the City of
Coeur d’Alene. The Contractor will secure and pay for all other permits and governmental fees, licenses and
inspections necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work which are customarily secured after
execution of the Contract and which are legally required when bids are received or negotiations concluded.

City of Coeur d’Alene shall pay for the following:

Plan Check Fee

Building Permit
Fire Department Plan Review and Inspections

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 008000 - 2

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"




FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’'ALENE, IDAHO

All other permits and fees for the Project shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

Add the following Subparagraph 3.7.1.2:

3.7.1.2 The Owner shall obtain and pay for all licenses and permits and shall pay all fees and charges for
connections to outside services unless noted otherwise. The Contractor shall pay for the use of municipal or private
property for storage of materials, parking, temporary obstructions, enclosures, opening and patching of streets, etc.,
off of the property arising from construction and completion of work. The Contractor shall furnish to the Owner and
the Architect no later than the preconstruction conference the permit numbers for mechanical, elecirical, plumbing
and any other required permits that must be obtained through governing agencies.

3.9 Superintendent
Add the following Paragraph 3.9.4:

3.9.4  Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Superintendent shall remain on the Project site whenever
Subcontractors of any tier are present and not less than eight (8) hours per day, five (5) days per week unless the job
is closed down due to a legal holiday, a general strike, conditions beyond the control of the Contractor, termination of
the contract in accordance with the Contract Documents, or Final Completion is attained. The Superintendent shall
not be employed on any other project during the course of the work.

Article 7 - CHANGES IN THE WORK
7.2 Change Orders
Add the following 7.2.2 through 7.2.6:

7.2.2  Any Change Order prepared, including but not limited to those arising by reason of the parties’ mutual
agreement or by mediation, shall constitute a final and full settlement of all matters relating to or affected by the
change in the work, including, but not limited to, all direct, indirect, and consequential costs associated with such
change and any and all adjustments to the Contract Sum and Contract Time. In the event a Change Order increases
the Contract Sum, the Contractor shall include the work covered by such Change Order in the Application for
payment as if such work were originally part of the project and Contract Documents.

7.2.3 By the execution of a Change Order, the Contractor agrees and acknowledges that he has had sufficient
time and opportunity to examine the change in work which is the subject of the Change Order and that he has
undertaken all reasonable efforts to discover and disclose any concealed or unknown conditions which may to any
extent affect the Contractor’s ability to perform in accordance with the Change Order. Aside from those matters
specifically set forth in the change Order, the Owner shall not be obligated to make any adjustments to either the
Contract Sum or Contract Time by reasons of any conditions affecting the change in work addressed by the Change
Order which could have reasonably been discovered or disclosed by the Contractor's examination.

7.2.4  When requested by the Architect, the Contractor shall prepare prices for additional work.

7.2.5  For ease of administration, the Owner may seek changes in the work via a Change Order Proposal that will
address a specific change or similar set of changes. Once agreed to, individual Change order Proposals will be
packaged into a Change Order.

7.2.6  The Contractor shall provide a.cost breakdown for all adjustments in the contract sum, i.e. Change Orders,
Change Order Proposals, and Construction Change Directives using the methodology described in 7.3.7. Section
7.3.8, 7.3.9, and 7.3.10 shall apply to all changes in the contract including Changes Orders and Change Order
Proposals.

7.3 Construction Change Directives

Delete Subparagraph 7.3.5 in its entirety and substitute the following:

7.3.5  Upon receipt of a Construction Change Directive, the Contractor shall promptly proceed with the change in

the Work involved, and within five (5) working days, advise the Architect, in writing, of the Contractor's agreement or
disagreement with the cost or method, if any, provided in the Construction Change Directive for determining the

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 008000 - 3

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"




FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D'ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’'ALENE, IDAHO

proposed adjustment to the Contract Sum or Contract Time. If the Contractor disagrees, it shall set forth in writing
and detail the reasons for its disagreement and the amount or other terms that is proposes. WITHOUT SUCH
TIMELY WRITTEN NOTICE, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONCLUSIVELY BE DEEMED TO HAVE ACCEPTED
THE OWNER'S VALUE OR METHOD OF ADJUSTMENT. The Contractor’s disagreement shall in no way relieve the

Contractor of its obligation to comply promptly with any written notice issued by the Owner or Architect. The ultimate
adjustment shall not exceed the larger amount under dispute, be it the Contractor's or the Owner’s stated figure. The
method of the adjustment shall then be determined by the Architect on the basis of reasonable expenditures and
savings of those performing the Work attributable to the Change, in strict accordance with this Paragraph 7.3 and
other applicable provisions of the Contract Documents.

In Subparagraph 7.3.6, in the last sentence, delete “recorded as a” and substitute “incorporated into a future.”
7.4 Minor Changes in the Work

Add the following sentence:

Minor changes in the work will be accomplished utilizing Architects Supplemental Instructions (ASI).
Article 8 — TIME
Delete the words “and arbitration” from Subparagraph 8.3.1.
Article 9 — PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION
9.3 Application of Payment.
9.3.1  Add the following:
In absence of section “Payment Procedures” in Division One of the specifications, this section will apply.
9.6.3  Add the following to Subparagraph 9.6.3:

The Owner, at his discretion, shall have the right to require the General Contractor to provide an audit of all payments
made to Subcontractor and Suppliers. The Owner shall also have the right to require the General Contractor to
furnish verification of payments made and/or Release of Claims for Payments on Owner-provided form from each
Subcontractor and Supplier with each pay application.

9.8 Substantial Completion
9.8.5 Add the following sentence to Subparagraph 9.8.5:

The payment shall be sufficient to increase the total payment to ninety-five (95) percent of the Contract sum less such
amounts as the Architect shall determine for all incomplete work and unsettle claims.

9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment
Add the following Clause 9.10.1.1. to 9.10.1:

9.10.1.1 The final retainage shall become due and payable to the Contractor in not less than thirty (30) days after the
issuance of the final Certificate for Payment by the Architect.

Portions of Subparagraph 9.10.1 not in conflict with this modification shall remain in effect.
Article 11 — INSURANCE AND BOND

11.1.1  Add the following Subparagraph:

.9 Liability Insurance shall include all major divisions of coverage and be on a comprehensive basis
including:
SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 008000 - 4

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"



FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’'ALENE, IDAHO

Premises Operations (including X-C/U as applicable)
Independent Contractor’s Protective

Products and Complete Operations

Personal Injury Liability with Employment Exclusion deleted.

Contractual — Including specified provision for Contractor’s obligation.
Owned, non-owned and hired motor vehicles.

Broad Form Property Damage including completed operations.
Umbrella Excess Liability

ONDOUR N =

11.1.2 Add sub-paragraph as follows:

11.1.2.1 The Owner, Project Manager, Longwell + Trapp Architects, and their respective officers, directors, agents,
and employees shall be named as additional insured’s on the insurance required in 11.1.2 above and the insurance
shall contain the severability of interest clause as follows:

“The insurance afforded herein applies separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought,
except with respect to the limits of the company’s ‘liability.”

The insurance required by Subparagraph 11.1.1 shall be written for not less than the following, or greater if required
by law: .

A Workers Compensation
a. State: Statutory
b. Employer's Liability: Statutory
2 Comprehensive General Liability (including Premises- Operations; Owners Contractor Protective;

Products and Completed Operations; Broad Form Property Damage; with Owner named as
additional insured):

a. Bodily Injury: $1,000,000 Each Occurrence

b. Property Damage: $2,000,000 Each Occurrence

c. Products and Complete Operations to be maintained for 2 years after final payment.
d. Property Damage Liability Insurance shall provide X, C and U coverage as applicable.

3 Contractual Liability:

a. Bodily Injury: $1,000,000 Each Occurrence

b. Property Damage: $2,000,000 Each Occurrence
4 Personal Injury, with Employment Exclusion deleted:

a. $1,000,000 Each Occurrence

11.3.1.3 Add deductible to be $5,000.00. Deductible to be paid by Contractor in event of a claim.
11.3.2 Delete this section.

Add the following Section and Subparagraph:

11.5  INDEMNITY

11.5.1  The Contractor shall indemnify, defend and save harmless the Owner, Owner’s Agent, the Architect, and the
Architect’'s Consultants from and against all claims, damages, costs, legal fees, expenses, actions and suits
whatsoever, including injury or death of others or any employee of the Contractor, Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor,
agents or employees, caused by failure to comply fully with any term or condition of the contract, or caused by
damage to or loss of use of property, directly or indirectly, by the carrying out of the work, or caused by any matter of
thing done, permitted or omitted to be done by the Contractor, his agents, subcontractors or employees and
occasioned by the negligence of the Contractor, his agents, subcontractors or employees. The Owner, Owner Agent,
Architect, and Architect’s consultants shall be named as additional insured on the Contractors liability policy.

Article 13 ~ MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 008000 - 5

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"



FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO

Delete Paragraph 13.7 and add the following Paragraphs 13.7.1 — 13.7.5:

13.71. Time Limits on Claims. A Claim, including those in connection with concealed or unknown conditions by

event or discovery of the condition giving rise to the Claim or within ten (10) days from the date that the Claimant
knew or should have known of the event or condition. Unless the Claim is made within the aforementioned time
requirements, it shall be deemed to be waived. The written notice of Claim shall include a factorial statement of the
basis for the Claim, pertinent dates, contract provisions offered in support of the Claim, additional materials offered in
support of the Claim, and the nature of the resolution sought by the Claimant. The Architect will not consider, and the
Owner shall not be responsible or liable for, any claims from subcontractors, suppliers, manufacturers or other
persons or entities not a party to this contract. Once a Claim is made, the Claimant shall cooperate with the Architect
and the party against whom the Claim is made in order to mitigate the alleged or potential damages, delay or other
adverse consequences arising out of the condition.

13.7.2  If the Contractor is delayed by the Owner or Architect, or by any employee of either, or by a separate
contractor employed by the Owner, or by Change Orders in the Work, the Contractor’s sole remedy shall be a time
extension for the completion of the Work. However, this paragraph does not exclude the recovery of the Owner for
money damages occasioned by the Contractor's delay under the provisions of the Contract Documents.

13.7.3 The Contractor’s right to proceed shall not be terminated nor the Contractor charged with resuiting damage
if (1) the Contractor is delayed in the completion of the Work arising from incidents beyond the control and without
fault or negligence of the Contractor, limited to the following: Intentional or negligent act of the Owner or the Architect,
or by any employee of either, or by a separate Contractor employed by the Owner, or by the Change Orders in the
Work, fires, floods, epidemics, acts of public enemy, in which case the time for completion of the Contract shall be
extended by a Change Order for such reasonable time as the Architect may determine; and (2) the Contractor,
whenever possible at least ten (10) days before the beginning of the delay occurs, notifies the Architect in writing, or,
if the delay was not reasonably foreseeable then the Contractor notifies the Architect in writing within ten (10) days
from the beginning of such delay; and (3) the Contractor provides a written estimate of the number of days the project
will be delayed.

13.7.4 Final Payment to Contractor
Acceptance of final payment by the Contractor shall constitute a waiver of Claims as described in Subparagraph
9.10.4.

13.7.5 Change Orders

The execution of a Change Order shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Contractor arising out of the Work to be
performed or deleted pursuant to the Change Order, except as specifically described in the Change Order. General
reservations of rights will be deemed waived and void.

Add the following:
13.8 Employment Policies

The Contractor shali maintain policies of employment as follows:

13.8.1.1 The Contractor and the Contractor's Subcontractors shall not discriminate against any employee or
applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex or national origin, and shall comply with Municipal
Code Chapter 9.5.6. The Contractor shall take affirmative action to insure that applicants are employed, and that
employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, sex or national origin. Such
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training,
including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices setting forth the policies of nondiscrimination.

13.8.2 The Contractor and the Contractor's Subcontractors shall, in all solicitations or advertisements for
employees placed by them or on their behalf, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for
employment without regard to race, religion, color, sex or national origin.

Article 15 — CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

15.1.2 Notice of Claims

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 008000 -6

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"




FIRE STATION NO. 4 PROJECT NO. 2014-075
COEUR D’ALENE FIRE DEPARTMENT COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO

Replace Paragraph with the following:

15.1.2 The Contractor shall submit all Claims to the Owner and the Architect and to Initial Decision Maker in writing
within_ten_(10).days_of the_discovery of the event(s) giving rise_to_-them and_shall.include.a-clear description_of the

Claim, the proposed change in the Contract Sum and/or Time of the Claim, and provide data supporting the Claim.
The Claim shall be deemed to include all direct and indirect changes in cost and in time to which the Contractor as
well as Subcontractors and Suppliers of any tier are entitled. Prior to the initiation of the dispute resolution procedure,
the owner or its representatives shall have the right to audit and copy the Claim-related books and records of the
Contractor and of any Subcontractor or Supplier of any tier whose claim is a part of or included in the Claim. The
claim of a subcontractor or Supplier of any tier may be brought only through the Contractor and only after the
Contractor notifies the Owner in writing that the Contractor has reviewed the Claim and believes to be meritorious.

15.3 Mediation
In Subparagraph 15.3.2 delete the last 2 sentences:
Add the following to Subparagraph 15.3.4:

If the Claim is not resolved first in any other dispute resolution procedure, neither the Contractor nor any
Subcontractor or Supplier of any tier may bring a claim against the Owner in litigation unless the claim is first subject
to nonbinding mediation before a single mediator under the Voluntary Construction Mediation Rules of the American
Arbitration Association. This requirement cannot be waived except by an explicit written waiver signed by the Owner
and the Contractor. An officer of the Contractor and the Superintendent of the Owner, both having full authority to
settle the claim, must attend the mediation session. To the extent there are other parties in interest, such as the
Architect, Subcontractors or Suppliers of any tier, their representatives, with full authority to settle the claim, shall also
attend the mediation session. Unless the Owner and the Contractor mutually agree in writing otherwise, all
unresolved Claims on the Project shall be considered at a single mediation session which shall occur prior to Final
Acceptance by the Owner. The Contractor is responsible for initiating the mediation procedure.

Add the following Subparagraph 15.3.5:
15.3.5 The Contractor shall diligently carry on the Work and maintain the Contractor's Construction Schedule

during any dispute resolution proceedings, unless otherwise agreed by it and the Owner in writing.

END OF SECTION 008000

SUPPLEMENTARY CONDITIONS 008000 - 7

RESOLUTION NO. 16-019 EXHIBIT "1"




PUBLIC HEARINGS



MEMORANDUM

DATE: APRIL 5, 2016
FROM: RENATA MCLEOD, MUNICIPAL SERVICES DIRECTOR
RE: APPROVAL OF THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG)

2016 ANNUAL ACTION PLAN.

DECISION POINT:
* Approval of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Plan Year 2016 Action Plan
in the amount of $310,681.

HISTORY: The City of Coeur d’Alene receives a direct allocation of HUD Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds. Each year the City is required to complete an annual
action plan in accordance with the adopted citizen participation plan. The Action Plan document
is intended to be an outline regarding how the City proposes to spend the CDBG funds, as well
as, fulfill the program reporting requirements. A 30-day public comment period was held
between March 4, 2016 and April 5, 2016. A public workshop was held March 24, 2016, with
one citizen attending who expressed interest in affordable housing. No additional public
comments were received.

FINANCIAL: The Plan Year 2016 allocation is $310,681. The following is a breakdown of the
proposed budget for your information.

Funding amount Line Item

$14,600.00 Sidewalk Accessibility/Repairs

$50,000.00 Emergency Minor Home Repairs

$190,160.00 Community Grants

$55,921.00 Administration (PAC Contract, Advertising, brochures,
training, Consolidated Plan Update)

$310,681.00

DECISION POINT:  Approval of the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Plan Year
2016 Action Plan in the amount of $310,681.00.

SR - Action Plan 040516.doc



CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE
PROPOSED ANNUAL ACTION PLAN
PY 2016

Public Hearing

,,,,,

IDAHO

ANNUAL ACTION PLAN

»To identify the City’s housing and
community development needs, priorities,
goals and strategies for PY 2016;

»To stipulate how federal Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds will
be allocated to housing and community
development needs in the community.

3/31/2016



PROCESS

Citizen Participation

- Public Meetings

- Citizen Survey

- Stakeholder Meeting and Interviews
= Draft Plan and Comment Period

Demographic and Socioeconomic Analysis
Housing Market Analysis - Updated

Fair Housing Analysis — Updated

Analysis of Special Needs Populations

Five Year Strategic Consolidated Plan

0BJECTIVES

" Benefit to Low and Moderate Income
(LMI) person

=  Aid in the prevention of slum and
blight

=  Meet an urgent need

3/31/2016



ALL POTENTIAL PROJECTS MUST:

National Objectives:

Approved activities must meet
one of the three National
Objectives, then it must be an
allowable/eligible activity that
meets the goals in the
Consolidated Plan.

Eligible Activities:

Activities related to housing;
(rehabilitation); Real property
(acquisition for public use);
public facilities and
improvements; public service
activities for special needs
populations; economic
development (employment
training programs); Planning
and Administration

PROGRAM REVIEW

= Total Amount of CDBG Received for Program

Years 2008 through 2015:
$2,3178,433

= Total Amount of leverage from other funding

sources:

$23,631,473

3/31/2016



POTENTIAL CDBG ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES
THAT ARE MOST IMPORTANT?

» New Affordable Housing

» Housing rehabilitation (owner
occupied housing)

» Sidewalk repair or replacement

» Property maintenance (e.g., code
enforcement)

» Youth center/services
» Senior Services

» Community Centers

» Transitional housing

» Housing for homeless

» Demolition of dilapidated
structures (commercial or
residential)

» Neighborhood planning

» Economic development —
assistance to businesses

» Job creation

» Neighborhood park or recreation

improvements

How easy is it for a project to qualify?

Matrix Code Key National Objective Codes ( N = Not Allowed)
Code Eligible Activity LMA | et | oesse | LMC | o { Locsy | LMH | ese | LMD | vt | e | SBA | SBS URG
14 Rehab; Smgle-Unit Res. - 570.202 N N N N N N N N N
148 Rehaby; Multi-Unit Residential N N N N N N N N N
14 Public Housing Modermization N N N N N N N N N
140 Rehab; Other than Public-Owned Residential Bids N N N N N N N N N
14E Rehab. Pub./Pvt.-Com'Indust’ - 570.202(2)(3) N|N| N[N N
14F [Energy Efficiency Improvements N N N N N N N N N
146 Acquistion for Rehabiigation N N N N N N N N N
144 | Rehabiitation Administration - 570.202(bX5) NN N
14 Leac-Basad Paint Abtm't - 570.202{1) N N N N N N N N N
141 | Housing Svc's - HOME Prog. - 570.201(k) N T L NN NN N
15 Code Enforcement - 570.202(c) N N N N N N N N N N
16A | Resdential Historic Preservation N|N|N]N]N|N N|N]|N N
168 Mon-Residential Hestoric Preservation L] N N N N N
174 | ED Acquisiion by Recipient - 570.203(2) NN NN
178 C1 Infrastructure Development N N N N
17¢ | C1Building Ac., Construction, Rehabiitation Wl w|w]|w N
170 Other Commencial/Industrial Improvements N N N N N
184 ED Assistance to For-Profits - 570.203(b) N N N N N N

3/31/2016



EXISTING GOALS

1—Increase supply of for sale housing at prices affordable to city’s low to
moderate-income workers

2—Increase the supply of rental housing affordable to the City’s extremely
low income renters and residents with special needs, including persons
who are homeless

3—Improve the City’s sidewalks to make them more accessible to persons
with disabilities

4—Continue with neighborhood revitalization efforts, including code
enforcement activities, to improve the condition of housing and
commercial properties in low income areas

85—Expand higher paying employment opportunities for the residents,
through economic development

6 — Public Service activities other than Low/Moderate Income Housing
Benefit

PROPOSED ANNUAL ACTION PLAN BUDGET
PY 2016

Proposed Allocation - $310,681

Allocation % of Est. Explanation
Funds | Funding

Administration 18% $55,921 | Contract for Administration,
Advertisement, Publications,
Training

Goal #2 Increase the 0.0% | $0.00 Housing Needs Assessment

Supply of Rental Housing to help determine future

Affordable to the City’s project funding based on

Extremely Low-Income housing needs

Renters and Residents with
Special Needs or Homeless

Goal #3 Improve the City’s | 5% $14,600 | Sidewalk repair/replacement
sidewalks to make them within LMI Census block
more accessible to person areas

with disabilities

3/31/2016



PROPOSED ANNUAL ACTION PLAN BUDGET

PY 2016 - CONTINUED

Goal #4 Continue with 16% $50,000 Available for home

Neighborhood Revitalization revitalization including

efforts, including code emergency minor home

enforcement activities, to repairs for LMI homeowners

improve the condition of

housing and commercial

properties in Low-Income

Areas - EMRAP

Community Projects to 61% $190,160 | Grants awarded during PY

benefit Low to Moderate 2016 - St. Vincent de Paul

income citizens and the Lake City Center
(yearly allocation)

TOTAL PROPOSED FOR 100% | $310,681 | All figures are based on

PY 2016 ANNUAL ACTION preliminary information

PLAN from HUD - final dollar

figures may change
however percentages set for
each category will remain
the same

FOR MORE INFORMATION

Please visit www.cdaid.org under the

community development link to review the
proposed PY 2016 Annual Action Plan, past
Action Plans and Reports including the 2013-
2017 Consolidated Plan completed in February

2013.

3/31/2016



TONIGHT’S OBJECTIVES

= To allow the community a final opportunity to
comment on the proposed Annual Action Plan

= Council’s approval of the PY 2016 Annual
Action Plan for submittal to HUD.

3/31/2016



	Agenda
	SR - Audit 2015 Anderson Bros
	Minutes cc mtg 031516
	PWMinutes032116
	Cemetery Transfer Jordan
	Beer/Wine The Bluebird
	Consent Reso. 16-017
	SR - Cooper's Corner Subdivision
	SR - 2016 Overlay - Approval of Low Bidder
	SR - GE Sole Source Procurement March 2016
	SR - Boat Slip MOU
	SR - 816 Sherman lease extension 2016
	Ped/Bike Appointment
	OtherBusinessDividerSheet
	SR - Amending civil service rules.april 2016
	SR - Fire Station 4 Contractor Approval
	Public Hearing Action Plan  040516



